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CHAIR TAVARES: ... (gavel) . .. There they are. Good afternoon, Members of the Planning
Committee. This is July 17th , and we will be covering, this afternoon, PC-IS, which is
the "Kihei-Makena and West Maui Transportation Planning Models; Traffic Impact
Fees" and also PC-I "Updates to the General Plan".
At this time, I'd like to recognize our Vice-Chair, Mr. Mateo and Committee Members
Michelle Anderson, Robert Carroll, our Council Chair, G. Riki Hokama is excused for
the time being, Ms. Johnson, Mr. Kane, and Mr. Molina, and Mr. Pontanilla. Thank you
very much.
There are some people signed up to testify and I noticed that most of the testimony is on
PC-I, which is the second item listed on our agenda today. PC-IS is the first item which
is the traffic impact fees topic. If there is anyone who cannot wait until we get to PC-I,
I would welcome your testimony at this point.
Okay. Mr. Smith is the first one to sign up to testify is indicating that he would like to
testify now. You have three minutes and one minute to conclude. If there are any
members in this room that have a pager or cell phone please put it to the silent, vibrate, or
off position so that we can minimize disruptions to the meeting. With that, Mr. Smith,
please state your name for the record and proceed.
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MR. SMITH: Chairman Tavares, Members of the Planning Committee. My name is Jim Smith,
and I'm a concerned citizen. And I'm here to testify on the update of our General Plan
and that process. I also wanted to note that I've reviewed the record and the Chair
submitted a request of Corporation Counsel in November of 2005 regarding whether an
ordinance, unified ordinance was necessary or whether several different ordinances in
updating our plan. And that has not been answered, and I think that is, I think, a
significant failure to, to answer.
I say that because
obvious
the
of Planning is campaigning
our Mayor. And this campaign has been going on since it became the responsibility of
the Planning Director to provide urban boundaries as a part of a draft General Plan.
that point, the idea that we would have a Citizen Advisory Committee working on a draft
provided by the Director, I think, became a problem. And we are seeing a continuing
evasion of the responsibility to provide a draft to the Citizen Advisory Committee, and
that is disgraceful as far as I'm concerned. And it diminishes the value of that body
significantly, and it harms the integrity of our process but not only that. There's
something more significant happening, and that is the discharge of Mr. Wayne Boteilho.
There was an article in yesterday's paper, which said that Mr. Boteilho for writing a
viewpoint was a disgruntled employee. My understanding was that he was an officer,
official. By our Charter someone who is a Deputy Director is an official and not an
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employee, by definition .. .I think that's 13-2. But more important, has he been caused to
resign?
Interestingly enough in 1990, Artemio Baxa, who was a bright man, still is, still alive,
was fired due to a political ramification after the election. Here we have somebody, who
I have experienced as being very smart, very professional, and an expert in his field in
long range planning ... being discharged. And I want to know is that constructed? Was
it cause, was he caused to leave because of something that was unacceptable? I, I think
that's an important thing for you to consider so that we understand whether or not thisMS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. SMITH: --delay extends to the removal of a valued public citizen. Thank you very much.
Official.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any questions for Mr. Smith? If not, thank you very much,
Mr. Smith. Our second person who signed up to testify is Lance Collins. If you want to
wait until that topic comes up ... okay. Dick Mayer, would you like to testify now or
later?
MR. MAYER: " .(inaudible) ...
CHAIR TAVARES: On 15. Yeah. I was going to take, if anybody can't wait until we get to 15
to do it now. 'Cause we're going to take the traffic impact fees first.
MR. MAYER: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR TAVARES: But you signed up for one.
MR. MAYER: I signed
TAVARES:
Oh.
made a separate paper

both.
one. Okay. Go
me off.

your
each one.

un,-,,-,-u.

sorry. So

MR. MAYER: I apologize for being wasteful.
CHAIR TAVARES: Oh. No, no, no. That's alright. Thank you.
MR. MAYER: I just want to make a few comments about the impact fees. And I'm urging you
as ... my name is Dick Mayer, I'm speaking on my own behalf. I'm urging that you do
that, get them, get the impact fees established as soon as possible.
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We had this past several months Kapalua Mauka corne before you and in the process they
had impact fee of around $2 million, $2.3 million, which was about, which was less than
the cost of half of a house, if they're going to sell it, out of the 900 houses that they're
selling. It doesn't do anything for the traffic and West Maui needs it.
Pulelehua will be corning before you very soon since the Planning Commission .. .just as
Wailea 670 is on your agenda this week. These are enormous projects with incredible
impacts on the community, on the existing residents of this community and all I wanted
to say about it is, please, please get the impact fees established, get the mechanisms
established, how the funds are going to be used, but the money should not be just used for
highways. Please make sure that when the impact fees are established that they can be
used for both highways and public transportation, whether it be fixed or, or buses or what
have you. But that the transportation problems can be solved not just highway problems.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: Any questions for Mr. Mayer on this item? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you, Mr. Mayer.
MR. MAYER: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: By implication are you suggesting that an impact fee be based on
a cost of a horne? And I ask that because in your testimony you made the comparison of
the $2.3 million which is less than the cost of a half of a house.
MR. MAYER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So is that, are you implying something by saying or using that
type of representation?
saymg
the amount
we
right now
particular impact
was so low, and I was trying to give a scale
low it was by comparing it to
in that project.
I think that, and there are two
cost of one ofthe houses that was
things, one is I do think there is a relationship that if a developer is going to be making
hundreds of millions of dollars of profit, perhaps billions in dollars in sale, that 900
houses at four, five million dollars each, that's billions of dollars in, in revenues.
2.3 million is, is relatively trivial by comparison. And that's what one thing I was saying.
The second thing is, I was just trying to say that this problem of transportation is not
anymore a $100,000, $1 million problem. These, it's probably in the order of hundreds
of millions of dollars to get the West Maui problem fixed, et cetera. And that's why I'm
trying to put a scale on it.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. I was just trying to understand that. Thank
you.
MR. MAYER: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any other questions for Mr. Mayer on this item?
MR. MAYER: I'll speak on No. 1 later.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Okay. We have Wayne Boteilho signed up to testify.
As I was explaining, you can wait to testify before the item comes up, because we're
going to take the traffic impact fees first. But if you have other appointments you can
testify now. Mr. Boteilho.
MR. BOTEILHO: Oh. Yeah. Sorry. Yeah. I'll testify now.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay.
MR. BOTEILHO: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you.
MR. BOTEILHO: Madam Chair and Members of the Planning, Planning Committee, my name
is Wayne Boteilho. I'm a former Deputy Planning, Planning Director. I'm testifying
today in, in compliance with the Ethics Code. I am not testifying as, for pay for any third
party. I am just testifying as a born and raised Maui boy.
I am here today in non, non-support of amending Bill 84 to merely allow the Maui
County General Plan to be updated in pieces rather than comprehensively and
simultaneously updated by all three General Plan Advisory Committees. This County
should not have to change
just because one Planning Director is somehow unable
to produce a General Plan. Other
Directors have produced General Plans
they have done it on time.
For example, in the General Plan contract of May 2004, for which the notice to proceed
was given to the consultant soon after, 2004, Mr. Foley signed his name to having a first
draft of the Maui Island Plan produced now. He also told it to the Mayor and to the
GP ACs. He now blames everyone else because we don't have a plan. I repeat, we do not
even have a first draft. What good is it within this County if we say and sign one thing
and then knowingly do something else? If we, as County officials, keep this up the
people will no longer believe in us.
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We keep on hearing from Mr. Foley, in two months, in two months. Well, we've been
hearing that same broken record for the last three and a half years. Wait a few months,
wait a few months, wait a few months, wait a few months, wait a few months. And the
public is not being served. In a few months shows a deep misunderstanding of what the
people of this County really want.
The true meaning of public service is to set a deadline and get it done. Public service
especially means meeting deadlines the same as every other County employee. We, as
County officials, should not continually give excuses why we cannot get things done.
Bill 84 is clear. It is the Planning Director and not the GP ACs, it is the Planning Director
that does the first draft of the General Plan. Then he or she sends it to all three General
Plan Advisory Committees concurrently. The word "concurrently" was never used in the
planning process before but it is being used now.
Bill 84 also says that unless the Council grants an extension the GP ACs are to complete
their work within 180 days after their first meeting. The intent of Bill 84 was that we
want speed in the General Plan process, not months and months of orientations because
we do not yet have a plan. I can tell you for a fact and I know because I was there.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. BOTEILHO: The true reason why we don't have a General Plan is because the Planning
Director was caught off guard when the Council began to empanel the GP ACs. If it were
not for the Council we, we would have not even gotten this far. And everything that is
happening now, the Planning Director was warned that it could happen.
So I stand here today in opposition to changing Bill 84 just because one person was
caught off guard. The Planning Director's actions prove it. He will use that broken
record again to say, to justify his inaction. But we are not fooled.
planning like in all
things talk is cheap. And so I leave you today
these final words. Unfortunately in
this County these words will have to leave,
infamy. Where is our
Mr. Foley?
Where is our
Thank you.
TAVARES: Any questions for Mr. Boteilho?
Ms. Johnson followed by Ms. Anderson.

Wayne, we have some questions.

MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Hello, Wayne, and thank you for testifying. One of the
things that I am getting mixed, I guess, signals or a little confused about is the concurrent
section that you referred to. I think and I can't speak for Ms. Tavares, but my
understanding basically was that we made some modifications to Bill 84 towards the end
of the process to accommodate Lanai and also to accommodate Molokai, because their
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community plans were sort of looked at as their General Plans. So that's why General
Plan Advisory Committees were formed in both Molokai and Lanai or their specific
areas.
One of the things that I want to get clear in my mind is, is it your contention that the
concurrent part of this means that all of the plans must be submitted to everyone of those
groups? Like in other words, the Maui Plan has to go to Molokai and Lanai and their
Plans come also to the GPAC for Maui County? Is that what you're saying?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes. Because the General Plan Advisory Committees for all three, three
islands was there pretty early. And what we wanted to have is speed, so, so when I say
concurrent it was to go to all three and all three had 180 days. Again, we wanted speed in
the, in the process.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But, but specifically then all three Plans were to go
simultaneously to all three groups for consideration?
MR. BOTEILHO: Well, well the same Plan, the General Plan would go to all three groups.
There's Molokai and Lanai sections in the General Plan also. And also Molokai and
Lanai was supposed to look at Countywide issues also.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it's your understanding that everything, everybody
was supposed to get the same thing, there would be no deviation and no considerations
for emphasis specifically on Molokai and Lanai?
MR. BOTEILHO: It, well, I would have to say no.
concurrent!y.

It was supposed to go to all three

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
TAVARES:

you.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,
Chair.
you, Mr. Boteilho, for
coming and helping us out today with your testimony. And, you know, just to reiterate
and put on the record, in 2.80B.050, Section A, it does say, "In processing proposed
decennial revisions to the General Plan, the Director of Planning shall simultaneously
transmit the proposed revisions prepared and recommended by the Director of Planning
to the three General Plan Advisory Committees." So, Wayne, you, you say that their, the
contract that was signed in May of '04 required that the Director submit by a certain date
the final plan?
MR. BOTEILHO: Well, the Maui Island Plan.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The Maui -MR. BOTEILHO: By-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --Island.
MR. BOTEILHO: --by June of 2006. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: By June -MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --of two ...
MR. BOTEILHO: And you can go look it up.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's on the contract that they, who -MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --whoever had the contract was supposed to be working
with the Department to get this Maui Island Plan done by June of '06?
MR. BOTEILHO: Of, yeah, yes. And also, it was also stated on, on the record.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so when we, when we did this contract for the Maui
Island Plan was it anticipated at that time back in May of '04 that the County would do
the Plans, the draft Plans for Lanai and Molokai and then include that with the Maui
Island Plan?
MR.

have
you
not sure about May 2004;
sure
about later.
was a disagreement
year that I had
that Molokai
Lanai should be simultaneous with, with Maui.
a decision was made in
later
the year that, that no, that Molokai and Lanai would be done later. And I, and I did, and I
did protest in writing that.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But was it ever the intention originally that the Lanai and
Molokai Plans would be generated out of our Long Range Planning Division rather than a
contract?
MR. BOTEILHO: No. It was, it was supposed to be, have been done by the General Plan
consultant. And it, and it still is the same.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But, I mean, we didn't get funding for that until this fiscal
year. So that's why I'm confused.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah. Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So what you're saying is that it was always intended to
have a consultant do those two plans? Mau ... , Molokai and Lanai?
MR. BOTEILHO: As far as I know, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay.
CHAIR TAVARES: Mr. Kane followed by Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. And, Madam Chair, my question is to provide
some clarity to one of the statements Mr. Boteilho stated. So I'm not asking for more,
just to clear what was said. I'm not -CHAIR TAVARES: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --going off into something that wasn't said-CHAIR TAVARES: Proceed.
COl.JNCILMEMBER KANE: --or being clear. Our Planning Director got caught off guard by
us initiating a selection process. Why is that significant? And why, why is that
significant and what did that cause a concern for you? Can you help us understand that?
BOTEILHO: Yes. It's significant because of what is happening now
we
empanelled waiting for a
and they
have a Plan. I know for a fact that
there was virtually no movement on, on getting the GP AC started within
Planning
Department. So when the Council did it, it, it sort of rushed the process, and I knew,
even at that time, that the plan wouldn't be ready now. So what you seeing now is that
we have people spending six months without a Plan and who knows how longer. That,
that was the cause.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The, the selection process deals with the Council coming up with
their selections and Administration through the Mayor's Office coming up with their
selections. Was, while you were in the Planning Department were you aware of any
initiative being, being proposed with respects to the Administration side coming forward
with their, I believe, six for Maui Island as well as respectively to the other islands as far
9-
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as their membership from Administration? Are you aware of any initiative from that
side?
MR. BOTEILHO: I guess I can't speak for everybody, but I would have to say no. And to, to
emphasize that fact I would have to say that, you know, just the fact that the Council
initiated the GP ACs kind of proves what I'm saying. In the past it was the Planning
Department who initiated GP ACs, it was not the Council. But in this case it was taking
so long that the Council had, had to say, you know, enough is enough.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Boteilho. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Boteilho, and
thank you for being here. Just with regards to your remarks you mentioned that you had
warned the, or the Planning Director had received warnings. Who was those warnings
from? Was that from you or any other personnel?
MR. BOTEILHO: That was from me.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Did you, and you submitted something in writing to the
Planning Director stating your concerns or protest?
MR. BOTEILHO: No. It was, it was mainly in meetings.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: In meetings.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah.
you, there's any way
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Do you have, I don't
you can get access to something that,
are
taken of those meetings if those
you brought to our
documents or any type of document related to the concerns
attention today ifit's possible that they could be submitted to this Committee as
MR. BOTEILHO: No. I would say, it was, it was like private meetings, management type of
meetings.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. BOTEILHO: So, so there's no minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Mr. Kane followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. Just one follow-up, Madam Chair. You referenced one
letter in writing that you protested, is that something that is available to this Committee?
MR. BOTEILHO: Unfortunately no, that was an e-mail and I just don't have it. We're talking
in, this was like two years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So it ...
MR. BOTEILHO: I wish I had it but ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If it's an e-mail then it should be a matter of public record,
because, it should be a matter of public record I would think, Madam Chair. So I guess if
a request went to the Planning Department to get that e-mail as an official document as
far as inter-department or whatever that should be something that's available since you're
claiming that it's there.
MR. BOTEILHO: Possibly, if they have it stored, you know, somewhere. But, I, it's just that I
don't have it.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Madam Chair. Mr. Boteilho, while you were
in the Department. .. and when did you leave?
MR. BOTEILHO: Well, the Department or the County?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
MR.

May 3

Department.

.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So prior to May 31 S\ had there been any, any discussion
within the Department about establishing urban growth boundaries for any of the islands?
MR. BOTEILHO: There was discussion because there had to be, 'cause it was in Bill 84. That's
about that. I did notice something and I don't know if it's still the fact. But, the Fiscal
Year '07 General Plan contract I seemed to notice that the funding for urban growth
boundaries had been taken out. I don't know if that's still the case, because at that point
only Mr. Foley had signed the contract. The Mayor had not.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Molokai and Lanai Plans?

And are you speaking for '07, that would be for the

MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so is it your, is it your understanding that urban
growth boundaries as far as the Department is concerned have already been established
for Maui Island?
MR. BOTEILHO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean from the Department's point of view.
MR. BOTEILHO: I don't know, you'd have to ask them.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you don't -MR. BOTEILHO: I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --you don't have any knowledge of whether or not urban
growth boundaries for Maui Island have been, you know, put in a draft form on a map or
you know.
MR. BOTEILHO: That was, that was never discussed, it was never told to me, I never saw it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: Mr. Pontanilla followed by Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good afternoon, Mr. Boteilho. I know a
presentation was made to this body some
back, maybe two years,
regards to
scheduling and
your u n ' " , , , u
assummg
you
a
meeting, monthly meeting?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And how often, how often if the Department in those
monthly, I guess, staff meetings, would review the timeline in regards to creating the, the
plans for the GP AC to, to utilize?
MR. BOTEILHO: That I don't know, 'cause I wasn't directly involved. When I say,
"management meetings" I mean between the Planning Director and myself with me
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trying to advise him based on the intent of Bill, Bill 84. What happened between
Mr. Foley and the Long Range Planning Division you would have to ask him.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So there's no staff meeting amongst the total Planning
Department on a monthly basis at least?
MR. BOTEILHO: No. There, there were meetings but just that I wasn't there.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Wayne, with regard to the comments that you're
making today, I guess I'm just going to come right out and ask you. If you had these
concerns and you felt that they were serious enough, you were a public official, why did
you choose to remain silent if they were so onerous and, you know, so, I guess,
worrisome to you?
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay. Because, there, under the County system, I guess, it is, I guess, proper
protocol. One goes to his boss first, and which I, and which I did. And a lot of it was
policy concerns. Now while I disagreed, it was, it was matters of policy and I felt that
Mr. Foley was the boss, so his decision would have to stand. I mentioned it to the Mayor
also, you know, a few times. So, I did go through the process and I wasn't totally silent.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and the only reason I ask is because you were
instrumental in working on Bill 84. So I guess my logical question would be, you know,
to take this to the proper channel if you felt there was any kind of a misunderstanding on
whether it was our part, the Administration's part, Mr. Foley's part, whoever? So, I, I
just was curious and you, did you make any attempt to bring this up with any of
Council Members at any time?
MR.

Not
a ~~U_H"U sense, I
say, you
like socially,
not
formal sense where I asked
Council Member to do, to
anything. More
venting.

a

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much, Wayne.
CHAIR TAVARES: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Madam Chair. Just one last question.
Mr. Boteilho, the General Plan and community plan ordinance was passed in 2004. Were
you not instrumental in drafting this legislation and seeing it through the Council's
Committee and adoption by the Council?
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MR. BOTEILHO: Yes. I was.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you for your flexibility, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: No problem.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: You're opposed to, I think your opening remarks, you're opposed
to us changing or considering a change to the content of Bill 84, is that correct?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: There was, I believe, between the time we passed Bill 84 and
now, there was, I believe, one time that we did make an amendment on that? Is that
correct? Can you recall?
MR. BOTEILHO: I believe there was, yeah. It was to clarify which, I mean, which plans does
Bill 84, would have to come under Bill 84.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Right.
MR. BOTEILHO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is this an application of the law that's the problem and that's to
verify your comments that, in your words, it seems that the Director is not properly
applying Bill 84 or the, the substance of Bill 84 or the intent of
MR.

I

to say, yes, because I

disagreed

years.

light of
comments, you don't believe
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And just finally,
it would be, and this is just a question, I'm not drawing a conclusion. But you, is it your
opinion that Bill 84 is, is not flawed?
MR. BOTEILHO: What I'm saying is that I do not believe ... okay I'm only speaking to one
single amendment and that is to change the law to have the General Plan done in pieces.
I feel, again, that. .. and the trend in Planning, I see 'cause the world is changing; the
trend in Planning is for speed in planning. To do it in pieces would only encourage
being, being slow. And also, quite frankly, we would be rewarding somebody for being
slow.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you.
MR. BOTEILHO: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Boteilho, good afternoon. Your,
your objection would that be essentially based on what you would consider
misinterpretation of Bill 84 by the, by the Director, or is it willful or/and intentfully not
conforming with the requirements of Bill 84?
MR. BOTEILHO: I would say it's a misinterpretation. I wouldn't go that far to say that it's a
intentional thing, no.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So, and your strong objections, therefore, to, to, making any
amendments whatsoever it is because as you worked on the Bill 84 yourself, is the
change substantive enough to you so that it weakens 84? What seems to be the most
driving force in your objection?
MR. BOTEILHO: It would slow the Plan down. It's very hard to do a Plan comprehensively if
you do it in pieces. Not only that but Bill 84 was crafted to basically force, force the
County to have speed. And to change it now, we, in, in my view we would be going back
to the same old broken system.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any further questions? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. To be clear, Mr. Boteilho, I believe you stated
as a matter of public record and this is response to your not going that far whether it's
misinterpreted or it's willful, other words, knowing the
and ignoring that
'Cause I believe you're on record as saying that you yourself made the Planning Director
aware of the intent, because you have had a role in crafting Bill 84.
So right now I'm getting a mixed message from you, so you need to be clear, in my
opinion. You need to state, is it misinterpretation, which contradicts what you've said
earlier, in earlier public remarks via your writings to The Maui News, or is it that they
were clear, they were told what its intent was and that intent is being ignored.
MR. BOTEILHO: They were told what that intent was, and that intent is being ignored. When I
said, it's not willful, I meant like, you know there was no evil, I mean, for lack of a better
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word, you know, there was nothing like that, no. I think it's just a misinterpretation and I
basically think that the Planning Director took bad advice.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sorry, Chair. This keeps evolving. Mr. Boteilho, in your
opinion, if we were not to change the ordinance, and I haven't really looked at the
amendment and I've read it on the agenda, but I'm assuming the amendment is going to
take out this "simultaneously transmit" the revised or the revisions. If we were not to
pass that amendment to allow them to then develop each island's plan separately and then
I guess bring it together in one General Plan in the end and we kept the ordinance the way
it is now, what would be the natural progression in getting this General Plan done from
this point forward?
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay. You know the Island Plan, it is only required for Maui. Molokai and
Lanai are not required to have an Island Plan. Okay. But having said that, I would say
that the Planning Department needs to be more organized, you know, just basic, basic
organization, trying to anticipate problems and, and, and solve them before they happen,
so that we can have speed.
Two, they need to have an... they've got to make it a goal, we want to finish this Plan
quickly and that, that and, and we're going to do it. And we're going to figure how to do
it and we're going to, and we're going to do it. And if they did that then they could
transmit the General Plan to all three GP ACs simultaneously.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and when do you anticipate that could happen if, you
know, everything was go and a Long Range Planning Division was all on board and they
had a deadline to get all three -MR.
Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --islands done?
MR. BOTEILHO: Well as a planner myself, I would say we would have to rely heavily on the
General Plan consultant, which, which in the original contract was the case. But we
would talk to the consultant, when could you reasonably get us a General Plan? And in
my estimation, six to eight months.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the, the previous contract that has now expired
what was accomplished in that contract? Did they get the Maui Island Plan done?
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MR. BOTEILHO: Okay. No. The contract did not expire, it's the same contract, but it was
amended to add funds -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
MR. BOTEILHO: --and to add scope. And the Maui Plan was still there, the Maui Island Plan
was still there. They just added extra scope.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So are you saying then that we don't have a final product
for the Maui Island Plan yet after two years?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Boteilho.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Mr. Boteilho, just a follow-up to
Member Anderson's inquiry. So, in your opinion having been the Deputy Planning
Director in working with Mr. Foley, so are you .. .I'm just trying to interpret this from
your comments that the Department has not made this a high priority. You know, am I
correct in interpreting it that way?
MR. BOTEILHO: I would have to say, yes, because I have processed seven County community
plans, and I know the pitfalls and the things that can happen down the road and you gotta
be ready for it. And I advised the Planning Director to do certain things, and he basically
said, well, don't worry about it, it's not going to happen. I said, I know it's going to
happen, and it has happened.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
Boteilho.
MR.

Okay. Thank you very much.

CHAIR TAV ARES: Alright, Members. Mr. Vanderbilt, you signed up late. Did you want to
testify now or before we discussed PC-I?
MR. VANDERBILT: Now.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay.
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MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you, Madam Chair, Members of the Planning Committee. My
name is DeGray Vanderbilt. I'm a Member of the Molokai GP AC, and I'm here
speaking as an individual. You know, I, I know Mike, and I like Mike and I know
Wayne from working on the Molokai Planning Commission and I like him. And I don't
know how this thing deteriorated to where it did. But this Committee put a tremendous
amount of work into Bill 84, and, and I felt there were some things that could be
improved on it. But whatever happened, this Committee, it seems, has come up with a
situation that's moving forward now.
And like Wayne said, there's no, there is no call for a Molokai and Lanai Island Plan.
Well, that certainly is not going to sit well with Molokai and Lanai. And I think that, as I
understand where this is going, the first part of the plan is, is sort of an umbrella Policy
Plan that's island wi ... , Countywide that would apply to Molokai, Lanai, and Maui. And,
that's going to come out and go to everybody simultaneously and at that point, I think the
intent is to try to some way to get Molokai and Lanai to have an Island Plan which will
really become its community plan, also.
Because if you look at Bill 84 and you look at the General Plan content, the community
plan content, they're all about the same. And if we just have a General Plan and have to
wait four or five years for our community plan to get amended so it's consistent with the
community plan that just perpetuates inconsistency and confusion.
So we were hopeful that on Molokai, and maybe Lanai feels the same way, that the
process could be combined, and I think that's what's being looked at as I understand it.
And, I, I guess I keep hearing about Planning consultants and all these other things and I
never hear about community. I never hear about the people on the GP AC. I mean, you
have a lot of dedicated people on all three GP ACs and you have communities that want to
get involved in this process.
And I know on Molokai we sometime get concerned because Maui is so big and so
diverse
six community planning areas
that what we're trying to accomplish on
some kind responsible basis sometimes gets, gets lost the problems that are created
over here
Maui. But it seems like everything's been sort of talked through and any
problems Bill 84 have been ferreted out, and the Planning Department is working with
the Planning Chair to come up with something so we can move on in a positive way and,
and, and, and get these Plans done. So, I just, I'm speaking in favor of the amendments
that are being considered although I haven't seen a -MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. VANDERBILT: --draft of what those amendments are. And I appreciate the work of this
Committee to see those changes through. Thank you.
- 18 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 17 2006

CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Vanderbilt. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Madam Chair. Thanks for being here,
Mr. Vanderbilt. Did, were you told as a member of the Molokai GP AC, were you told
when your first official meeting would be when you had your first orientation and they
sent out, set out a schedule for you?
MR. VANDERBILT: I'm not aware, we had back-to-back, two orientation meetings on a Friday
and a Saturday. And I think we were of the understanding...we were focused on the
Molokai Island Plan and not this umbrella policy statement, and I think that our
understanding was that our, the draft of our General Plan that we would start with would
be our Molokai Community Plan that was passed by the community before it went
through a lot of amendments at the last minute.
And, and then after that, all this other stuff started evolving over in Maui, and that's
really why I stopped by today. I didn't fly over especially for this, but I was here because
I've gotten asked by a couple other GPAC members, what's up? And I say, I don't know
but I, I think things are moving forward, get started sometime here. But we were really
focused on the Island Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you were never given a timeframe as to when you
would begin your first official meeting?
MR. VANDERBILT: No. It just seemed after those two orientations meetings, it wasn't clear
that, that was the last orientation meeting. I, I think everybody just sort of. .. we didn't
really focus on that, I just thought there was some other, there was some other. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you've only had two meetings?
MR. VANDERBILT: We

two, back-to-back.
was

VANDERBILT: I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
months ago?

I mean when basically, was it two months ago, three

MR. VANDERBILT: Two or three months ago.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions for Mr. Vanderbilt? Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Madam Chair. So to be clear now you're saying that
you're in support of amendments that you're not aware of? That's, is that what I heard
you say, Mr. Vanderbilt?
MR. VANDERBILT: Probably, but I'm not very clear when I talk anyway, I mean I don't, I
don't dwell on every little word.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Well, these words are important though, because you're giving it
to us in, in testimony -MR. VANDERBILT: I ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --and asking -MR. VANDERBILT: But I ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --influence our, our thinking.
MR. VANDERBILT: But I think I followed that up by saying that it's sort of my understanding.
I haven't seen the draft but my general understanding is what I'm in support of, which is
basically that there's going to be some amendments to the Plan and that there's going to
be an umbrella, sort of an umbrella Countywide Policy Plan that'll be for Molokai, Lanai,
and Maui Islands.
And then there's going to be a Molokai and Lanai Island Plan as well as the Maui Island
Plan. And that our Molokai and Lanai Plan may, hopefully, the process may allow us to
have our General Plan sort of become our community plan. That's just basically in a
nutshell what I sort of understand could happen. Whether it does or not, I don't know,
'cause I haven't seen a draft of anything.
you,
CHAIR TAVARES:
coming today.

you. Any

questions for Mr. Vanderbilt?

MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
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ITEM NO. 15:

KIHEI-MAKENA
AND
WEST
MAUl
TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING MODELS; TRAFFIC IMPACT FEES
(MISe. COM.,
C.C. 03-235)

CHAIR TAVARES: Alright, Members, we're going to go into PC-Traffic Impact Fees-I5, I
think it is. And we'll, we have a presentation by Dick Kaku from Kaku and Associates
will be giving us a PowerPoint presentation of the status of the Maui traffic impact fee
update. So at this time we'll call a two minute recess. Okay. We'll put the screen down.
Recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

2:22 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:26 p.m.

CHAIR TAVARES: ... (gavel) . ...... (inaudible) ... to order. I'm over here in my other seat in
case anybody is looking for me. At this time, I'd like to introduce Mr. Dick Kaku, who is
back there at the computer, and he will be providing an update for us through a
PowerPoint. Members, you do have a copy of that at your desk, and we'll tum it over to
you this time. Thank you for coming over.
(Presentation by Dick Kaku of Kaku Associates)

MR. KAKU: Thank you, Madam Chair. I apologize that I'm standing back here and not up
front, but I think this is the easiest way. I also apologize, I'm, I'm sure that most of wish
that this was not a progress report and it's the final report. But we're, we're getting there,
but I think what's important--we were asked to help the County put together a traffic
impact fee, a program--and I think it's important, at this point in time since we are in the
middle of our work, to talk about these three items.
Number one, travel demand forecasting model. This is a model, it's just a mathematical
set of equations that,
represent how to convert land use, in other words, number
dwelling units,
of square
retail, et cetera,
traffic. So that it can be
used to project what's likely to happen the future; what's likely to be the problems
the future; where they're going to occur, so that we can then come up with No.2 item I
will talk about today, which is the highway improvement plan. And then convert that
highway improvement plan into some costs, that are going to be needed and
implemented, and figure out to what degree can we come up with a very quantifiable
legal nexus between new development and the need for this highway improvement plan,
so that we can convert that into a traffic impact fee. And we'll kind of take you
step-by-step into how we expect to do that.
Now this may seem a little overdone and complicated for you, but it isn't meant to be.
The four blocks on the left, starting with the one on the top left, existing socioeconomic
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land use data; and then data collection on the far left; and then on the bottom left,
roadside visitor survey. Those are the three ways in which we collected data, and most of
the data is from nine ... , or excuse me, 2004. And don't be concerned that it's two years
old now, it, it is accurate, useful data that we can use for setting up a model. And it's the
best way to set up a model, because the 2004 data is data that we can check and verify,
something we really couldn't necessarily do if the data was 2006, because some of it is
currently changing. In any case, we collect this data and use that to develop our model.
And we'll talk a little bit about how that's done and why we feel comfortable about what
we've done and its ability to project future traffic on Maui.
Then we get future socioeconomic and land use data, we get forecasts that the County has
prepared on what's likely to happen in terms of how many new homes are going to be,
how many new hotels, and where they're going to be from the County, and we use that to
make traffic forecasts. Those traffic forecasts prepared by the model and then help us
identify what the likely deficiencies are going to be throughout the County or throughout
the island. And from that we've developed, and we'll refine it, a highway improvement
plan. We developed costs for it and then, as I said, we used combination of the
improvement plan, the cost, and the relationship of the need for that improvement plan
with the future change in, in land use to come up with a impact fee.
Now, the basic background behind the need for this and why this is being done and where
we're headed with it is that, as we all know and most of the stuff is stuff that isn't new to
any of you, the growth on Maui has been large, development has, has been significant
over the last few decades. The trend is expected to continue, some say a little bit slower,
some say, no, but it is expected to continue over the next 10 to 20 years. And so one of
the things that has been discovered is that with this tremendous amount of growth and
development the infrastructure hasn't been able to keep up with the growth and the
demand for travel, demand for water services, et cetera. And so this is the background
behind why we need an impact fee as part of the mechanism for generating funds to pay
for a part of infrastructure.
by
over
last
years, IS
Now
economy
driven
expected to continue to do so, although there's a trend to change a little bit.
lot the
future growth isn't necessarily directly related to tourism, but what we tried to do is to
make sure we understand the relationship between the future growth and tourism, the
future growth and residential traffic to make sure that we know how to make the
relationship stand and how to make sure that we can develop a good tie-in between future
growth and highway needs.
And the final last statement, traffic of course is one of the biggest problems facing the
County. Every survey that's been taken, every time any newspaper survey is conducted,
it always comes up on top and so that's nothing new. Let's hope that we can do
something to be a part of that with this program.
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Now as I said on that first chart, the flow chart, we need to come up with detailed land
use data from 19 ... , or excuse me once again, 2004. And we use that and compare it with
the existing circulation system. And when we say circulation system we mean the
highways on Maui. We do a detailed inventory to figure out how many lanes there are;
where they go to; the condition of it. We look at the intersections, we also look at traffic
volumes and the operating conditions. In other words, we wanted to make sure we
understand where the problems are today and, and what, where the likely changes are
going to be in terms of future needs.
Now, the, the piece of information that try to remember and hold onto as we go into the
discussion of how we've done this. In year 2004, there were about 44,000 dwelling units,
82 ... , no, that's 8 million square feet of industrial development, 7.8 million square feet of
retail, 3.3 million square feet of office, and about, oh, just under 21,000 hotel resort units.
Now, it is expected that most of these numbers are going to increase significantly. The
hotel resort units are going to slow down a little bit so that its increase is only 5 percent.
But the dwelling units in the next 11 years between 2004 and 2015 is expected to increase
40 percent to 62,000 units, and as you can see, all of the other changes are expected to
occur across the board. This is important not just in terms of the numbers but in the
location.
And as you can see by these generalized charts, we split up the island into the six
planning communities and kind of showed where most of this growth is going to occur.
The dwelling units, the majority of the increase in dwelling units, which is a slight
change from what has been occurring over the past 20 years is expected to occur in
Central Maui and Upcountry Maui. As you can see, those two areas are the one that have
the most significant increases even though West Maui and South Maui are also expected
to increase.
Same kind of increases in retail space, the biggest changes once again are expected to
occur this time not only Central Maui but
South Maui. Office space primarily
once again,
Central
South. Change
industrial space, actually through,
throughout Central, West, and South Maui and changes in hotels primarily
South
Maui, in the Kihei area. That's about the only area, planning area on Maui that's
expected to experience any significant change in the number of hotel units.
Now, one of the first things that and most important things that we had to do as part of
our data collection was to conduct, what we call, the, the roadside resident travel survey.
What we did was identified six key locations, and I'll show you a map that shows where
those six locations are on the island, and we photographed license plates of cars as they
passed a specific point in, at three time periods: during the morning peak hour when
people are going to work; during the afternoon peak hour when people were returning
home; and in the middle of the day because we realize that on an island like Maui the
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middle, the midday peak is, is almost as important if not in some ways more significant
than, than the typical commuter peaks in the morning and afternoon.
We observed about 20,000 license plates in those six locations during those three time
periods. We, we went to the State and got addresses for all 20,000 plates. We mailed
surveys to all 20,000 addresses and actually we, and this is, we got responses from about
2,000. What we really got was about four or five thousand responses, but quite a few of
them didn't make sense so we had to reject them. And we didn't want to use data that
didn't make sense and one of, one of course the interesting things that always occurs on
these kinds of surveys .. .I didn't hear that it occurred here on Maui. But we did a similar
survey in California, and I guess we caused a couple of divorces because men were
observed in locations that they weren't supposed to be.
In any case, we got. . .in our survey we asked the person who was observed driving
that. .. we indicated to them that they were observed driving at a certain location on a
certain day at a certain time. So we asked them, where did you start your trip; where
were you going; what was the purpose of it; how often do you do it? This information
was used to help us kind of get a picture of what happens at these six key locations, and
when you see them you'll see that they provide us a pretty good picture of what happens
on Maui.
The six locations are: one, on the Honoapiilani highway in West Maui; two, North Kihei
Road in South Maui; Kaahumanu Avenue in Central; Mokulele in Central, Hana
Highway; and then and Upcountry on Haleakala Highway. And so we got what, as I
said, about 2,000-plus responses, and, and those 2,000-plus responses provided us with a
real nice picture of what kind of travel is going on for what purpose by time of day.
Now, the one thing that we didn't get from this, because since we were taking license
plates and sending them to the owners of the cars, was of course the tourists. And so
what we wanted to do was get an idea of what kind of travel that tourists do during the
day. So, we, what we did was at five
car agencies, as, as the visitors were turning
we asked them to do,
vehicles, we interviewed as many as we could. And
and we had a map for every single visitor that we interviewed, we had a map and we
asked them to show us exactly all the trips they had made on the previous day. We didn't
want what they did today or what they did two days ago or what they had done during the
five days that they were on Maui. We just asked them what did they do yesterday and
timed the surveys so that they would coincide with the days in which we did our, our
license plate survey on those six locations.
We interviewed just under 1,000 people and what we were able to do was to come up
with a picture of what the tourists are doing on, at these six locations and, and use that to
come up with a percentage of how much traffic at each of those six locations is generated
by tourists and which, and how much is generated by the residents. Now, when we
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developed... (CHANGE TAPE) ...we do is to divide the island into, what we call, traffic
analysis zones and as you can see, there are, I guess, 36 of them.
So we divided Maui, the Island of Maui into 36 small zones. And what we did for every
one of those zones is based upon how many homes there were; how many shops there
are; how many offices there are; how many hotels rooms there are. We figured out how
much traffic is generated. So for example, Zone 13 probably is in Lahaina, we figured
out how much traffic is generated in Lahaina on a peak hour basis and on a daily basis.
And then using that survey that we did, we figured out how much of that total traffic
generated in Lahaina went to various places on the island. How much of it went to
Zone 3 in Kihei; how much of it went to Zone 34, in Wailuku; et cetera?
And we were able to use a combination of the land use data, figure how much total traffic
there was going to be, and the survey data to figure out where they went and when they
went. And we were able to get a picture, a all-day picture of how much traffic is
generated on Maui; where does that traffic go; what's the purpose of those trips; and, and
what time of day do those trips occur? And all of those things are important, because
they all lead into our model and they all lead into what the needs are going to be.
So we don't have ... and I'll admit this, this where for the leap of faith comes in. What
we do is we take the 2004 data; take the survey data; take the land use data; come up with
the model; run the model and see how much traffic we say is going to be on Mokulele
Highway; how much is going to be on Honoapiilani Highway; and we compare it to how
much traffic we counted. And if we can get a match, 100 percent match on all of those
highways then we make the leap of faith and say, you know, that'd be a pretty
tremendous coincidence if we just guessed. So we feel fairly confident on that basis, in
other words, the comparison of the way the model thinks the traffic is going to be on
Maui and what actually was counted to verify that the model is actually projecting traffic
correctly.
So once we can project what happens today,
you can project what's going to
by figuring out how
new homes there are going to be; how many new
hotel rooms there's going to be; how many new offices there's going to be; et cetera. So
and you saw on those previous charts of the island we have an idea, 40 percent increase
of, of dwelling units et cetera.
The 2015 land use forecasts were used to project future traffic. These future traffic was
assigned to the roadway system. We had a preliminary highway improvement plan and
we kind of verified how effective that highway improvement plan is going to be. And
over the next few weeks that's what we're going to be spending our time doing. And that
is to see if, in fact, the preliminary highway improvement plan that we've come up with
in conjunction with County staff is going to be good enough to solve the problems to the
year 2015. And if they're not we'll figure out what additional improvements are
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necessary. But in the meantime we've already got a preliminary plan and we, we want to
see how well it operates, and once we've done that. .. and by the way these are the
improvements that are on our preliminary list. See that they cover most of the island,
might be easier to kind of get a feel for where these improvements are. As you can see,
they cover West Maui, South Maui, Central Maui and into Upcountry. So the highway
improvement program is pretty well uniformly addresses the issues all over the island.
We used the model to figure out how much of the new developments' traffic is going to
use each of the roadway segments, especially on the new improvements. And we used
various kind of techniques, that the model has capabilities to do, to figure out the various
percentages of, of new development traffic by land use. In other words, we figure out
whether the, what percentages by new homes; what percentages by new hotels; what
percentages by new stores; et cetera. And we develop a relationship that allows us to
make a forecast as to say and take the next step that says, okay, for the Lahaina bypass a
certain percentage of the, of the traffic is coming from new development that's related to
new homes, and so this is the percentage that should be assessed against new homes. We
come up with a percentage that says, this is a percentage that should be assessed against
new stores on Maui, et cetera.
So we can do that for every single new highway or highway improvement that we are
planning for Maui and come up with the impact fee and convert it into this kind of fee. In
other words we say, so many dollars per single family dwelling unit; so many dollars per
multiple dwelling unit; so many dollars for retail, office, industrial; and so many dollars
per hotel room. And so the impact fee program will look like this, only it'll be a number
between the dollar sign and the, and the slash. And that will tell you what we are initially
suggesting as the, the fee that developers need to pay to be given the opportunity to
develop new residential, commercial, industrial, and hotel developments on out. So
hopefully this will generate some interest but not too many questions, but I'm here to
answer any that anyone may have.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you very
Mr. Kaku.
this
Members, we'll
a recess, and
don't we just take our afternoon recess and
back
at
3:00 p.m .. And in the meantime we'll have Mr. Kaku come up front and we'll raise
screen and then proceed with questions from the Members. Recess until 3:00 p.m ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:47 p.m.
3:10 p.m. (Exc. Councilmember Kane)

CHAIR TAVARES: The Planning Committee please reconvene. Thank you, Members, for that
break. Before we get into the questions by the Members we have other folks who had, or
let me check, I don't think we have had other folks to comment about this particular item.
So we will just go ahead and go Ill, into the questions and by the, by the
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Committee Members. I have a few but I will let you folks go first, you might cover the
same ones that I have. So why don't we just go down the line and start with
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Kaku, part of your presentation
you showed the proposed 2015 network improvements. I'm assuming that looking at all
of the roads, local collectors as well as highway, the numbers on the right hand side
would indicate four lanes, two lanes?
MR. KAKU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBERPONTANILLA: And, I, I know some of these roads are right now in the
planning stages. Let's see, I notice you don't have the Honoapiilani network
improvements between Lahaina and Maalaea in the next nine years.
MR. KAKU: Yeah. It, it, it didn't come up as, as one of the short term improvements that we
had discussed with the County, so that's why it's not on there. I think it's, it, it's still
viewed as a such a difficult project that it's viewed as a long term project both by the
County and the State.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh huh. Just this morning in The Maui News in regards
to the Kihei North-South Collector Road, I know we had, we had lost some Federal
fundings because of the community sentiments in regards to having a two road, two lane
highway rather than a four lane. Maybe for the Planning Department if you would know
in regards to if we can't get any Federal funding for that major collect ... , two lane major
collector now, how are we going to foot the bill?
MR. FOLEY: Madam Chair, if! can just answer that generally. The Public Works Director is in
the audience and he might want to address it more specifically. But we are, we are still
hoping to get State and Federal funds for the North-South Collector.
we're
unsuccessful getting State and Federal
we will, we will continue to propose its
construction using developers' money
County money.
quite a bit of it is being,
of the North-South Collector is being built as part of development projects. Towne
Development, for instance, is building two different segments of the North-South
Collector.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. And that's the reason why I, I questioned that
because we're, you know, we've condemned some properties in regards to Towne
Development. In regards to, you know, the units that you talk about in... although you
don't have the dollar amount, as far as the units themselves, you know, based on the
developments that we have throughout Maui County. For those big developments is
there any consideration in regards to ohana units, second units being built on a particular
individua110t?
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MR. KAKU: Well, we aren't in the position to be able to separate out the nature of the units.
We just have to go by the data that's being provided to us. Ifit's single family, it's single
family, it's multiple family, it's mUltiple family. If, if the County has a better
understanding and wants to give us a different breakdown, would like to us to deal with
that in a different way we can. The, the model will allow us to but, you know, it's, it's a
matter of getting information to us.
COUNCILMEMBERPONTANILLA: Yeah. Because, you know, this is developer driven
almost, that sometimes we forget that, you know, some of these developments do have
ohanas and that's causing a big problem for our highways. Of course, you know, on the
West Side affordable housing is almost nil, yeah. So people are renting their rooms, you
know, people that were living here are now on the Lahaina side renting the rooms and
that caused major congestion. So hopefully those things are taken into consideration.
MR. KAKU: Well, I would say that, if you're talking about existing units that, that, that build
ohana units the answer is to that is no. Definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Definitely.
MR. KAKU: And if you're talking about future units that might have that, I'm not sure. It's
very unlikely that anybody can anticipate how that's going to be done. I, I just think that
it's, it's, it's an issue that you actually shouldn't be addressing at the impact fee level but
you should really be addressing it at the, at the building inspection, building department
level. That's, that's where it has to be addressed.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. If somehow we could, you know, I don't know
how. Because when you do have developments, you know, and then these property
owners start building ohanas that, that has an impact not only on the development but on
road itself, so. Thank you, Chair.
you. And I
our
fee is going to
by
dwelling
for a development. So when those plans come forward I
the, the
determination will be made based on the number of dwelling units. which would include
if they're going to have an ohana as a separate dwelling unit so that would be a, like a
double impact fee for that lot.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, unless there's restrictions.
CHAIR TAVARES: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Kaku.
Seeing on the issues of roads itself, can you give us your thoughts on developing these,
these partnerships I guess, with, with the building community and, and working with the
County to get our roads built faster. I mean is this a direction you see that must be taken
as we look at, you know, Maui's growth in relation to the, you know, the need for roads
and getting it built faster?
MR. KAKU: Definitely there has to be a partnership. The impact fee is but one of several
mechanisms that the County has available to them, to, to get the development community
involved.
Besides this impact fee, which is kind oflike a black and white, here's, here's a fee that
you have to pay no matter what. JThere's also the issue of some direct improvements
that, that each development is likely to have to, to make. Some of them are going to be
very minor because development is small. The larger developments are going to have to
put in a lot of their own roadways, and that's just a part of the, the, the process that the
County has to go through and, and the conditions that they, that they draw with, with the
developer. Those are all things that they need to come up with as a partnership.
And then the third thing that we see more of in other communities is, is that when you
have a roadway that maybe doesn't fall into this category or even does fall into the
category and you're looking for local funds to match Federal funds, quite often you can
make arrangements with the developers to, to pay up front the local portion of the cost of
implementing something, so that you can more quickly and easily get Federal funds. And
then they get credit for it as part of either the conditional, the conditions that they have or
as part of the impact fee. So those kinds of things are all mechanisms that I think have to
be considered, have to be used and I, and I'm, from what I've observed are being used
both here and other communities.
reason on

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh
that on Oahu --

I guess you see a

MR. KAKU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --to help expedite the building of various roads. Yeah. Okay.
Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Kaku, good afternoon. Just-- 29 -
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MR. KAKU: Good afternoon.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --you know, I was looking at your, the 2003, the final report but it, that
focused primarily on West Maui and South Maui.
MR. KAKU: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And then today we're looking at the, an update, doing the update
because it was inclusive of again West and South Maui. Had you noticed the change just
between those three years?
MR. KAKU: Yes. I would say that the development pattern has changed. I think that the, that it
has changed from the perspective of the type of, of, of development that, that's projected
into the future and where. One key example is, is that the, the amount of residential
development that is being projected for Central Maui is significantly greater now than it
was in the past. And I'm assuming that has to do with the, the sale of, of a lot of the
properties.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And, and it's been consistent with what your, your kind of like
advising us on in terms ofthe '03 report versus your update?
MR. KAKU: Well, I would, I would definitely because, because our original report was limited
because of, especially because of the, the current legislation to West and South Maui.
But I think because the current development picture says that a significant amount of
future development is going to occur outside of West and South Maui that the impact fee
program has to be expanded to include these, at a minimum these are the two
communities and probably the entire island.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you. And to the Department then, with, with this new,
new update for us are there going to be subsequent updates and perhaps a final summary
that'll be coming through, so we can
actual instead of piecemealing it we can have a
that's
of
MR.

Yeah.

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --ofMr. Kaku's work?
MR. KAKU: Well, our work should be available to everyone including you folks in about a
month in a draft form that has all of our recommendations.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
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MR. KAKU: And, and that will, that will include not only the final numbers that we produce but
our recommendations on what the fee should be on a Maui Island basis.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And in about another month?
MR. KAKU: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR TA V ARES: And to follow up on that you're doing it by community plan regions ... for
Maui, Maui Island?
MR. KAKU: You mean separate fees for the various ...
CHAIR TAVARES: Yes.
MR. KAKU: No. At this point in time our, our instructions were to develop one fee for the
entire island.
CHAIR TAV ARES: One fee for the entire island?
MR. KAKU: Yes. I mean there are separate numbers based upon dwelling units, retail,
et cetera, but it's only one for the entire island. That, that's, those were our instructions.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. We'll, we'll work on that. It's not what my understanding was. I
thought we were updating West and South Maui and developing a fee for the rest of the
island. But we'll, we'll check on that. I'm sorry, Mr. Mateo, I kind of-VICE-CHAIR

done.
--piggybacked on your

Alright.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
that last question I don't know what to ask,
because my understanding was because the ordinance that we have under 14.62 and
pose my question in
14.68 specifically refers to South and West Maui. So I guess
regard to response to Member Tavares' request for information from Department of
Corporation Counsel.
And I guess I'll ask you, Mr. Kaku, on May 17,2006, Corporation Counsel responded to
a memorandum from Chair Tavares, and what had ended up happening was specific areas
of defect were outlined or specific areas where there was non-compliance with these two
chapters that I just spoke about were of concern. And, the areas, if you don't have it in
front of you, I'll read it. "The report" and this was your original report "does not identify
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the areas where existing zoning is not in conformity with applicable community plans;
does not appear that the Kaku Report presents a comprehensive roadway master plan;
Kaku Report does not list all of the local and collector roads including rights-of-way; and
it does not contain a description of all new intersection improvements including left tum
storage, right tum and traffic signal systems; and the listing of traffic impact fee rates in
the Kaku Report does not match the format specified in the County Code."
Can you state that your current update that you're working on addresses all of those
defects, which is why we were told by Corporation Counsel we could not adopt an impact
fee?
MR. SUMMERS: If! may, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAV ARES: Go ahead, Mr. Summers.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you. Regarding that question, the, the reason why we are updating the
report is to address those problems as well as some other structural problems with the
ordinance. Namely the fact that developing a fee structure only for South and West Maui
doesn't make sense, that we really should have a fee structure for the entire island. The
other major issue is right-of-way costs that needed to be incorporated into the cost
structure for the fee. So the update of this report does address those issues.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So all of the defects that were outlined in Corporation
Counsel's Memo of May 1i\ will be addressed in this update?
MR. SUMMERS: Right. I mean the, the objective is to have a plan that will comport with State
and County Law. We will need to go back and look at Title 14 and make some
adjustments to the existing ordinance in the County Code so that we can collect fees for
Central Maui and, and the rest of the island. So there will be some, some amendments to
the current Code to address some other things. One of the, there were a few things the
existing statute that I felt were really, really cumbersome, that
required by State
Statute, so
those instances we may want to look at those types of items as well.
this is an opportunity to really create something that will work for the County and that is
going to provide a nice vehicle for us to collect revenue in a transparent way.
As Mr. Kaku indicated, what we do have to remember is that this is one, one rather small
piece of the financing puzzle. So it's very, very important that as we move forward we
keep that in mind that we need to make sure that we have other tools so that we can
adequately finance the roads, because the revenues collected by impact fees certainly
can't do it alone.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah and, and in regard, Mr. Summers, to what you just
outlined, because the conditions that have been imposed in the past by the Planning
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Commission on specific developments, specifically with South and West and other
builders, who I believe also might have even been in Central or other areas outside of the
South and West Maui area. What will this do to the County's ability to collect those fees
at such time as they are adopted? Because those are conditions that run with the land, so
can you address that?
MR. SUMMERS: Well, that's the type of analysis that we need to look at when we go through
the ordinance, because State Statute doesn't allow us to double dip, which I think is what
you're getting to. And there are other tools that are out there for, say, local connector
roads, the development of those types of roads that may be, those types of roads may be
better be funded through development agreements or conditions of approval.
So it'll have to be a menu of tools where the most appropriate tool is used for the most,
for the, for the road that, that works for. So I very much agree with you that we need to
look at it, and impact fees work great for regional infrastructure systems, major collector
roads, highways, and the like. For local streets, sometimes that's not the best tool.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and what I was really referring to was
irrespective of the conditions imposed for impact fees, because I realize that some people
have included a voluntary contribution within that. But there were conditions specifically
worded by the Planning Commission because I've read some of them. And the
conditions, from my recollection, stated that when a traffic impact fee was adopted by the
Council that particular developer would agree to pay it. And that was my recollection, so
that is something that is specific that refers to this ordinance. So I wonder how are we
going to collect that money?
MR. FOLEY: Madam Chair, the, those conditions that Ms. Johnson refers to also say, if the
traffic impact fee is adopted by the Council prior to issuance of building permits or in
some cases prior to issuance of occupancy permits. So there's a trigger that those, those
projects, which have not proceeded and have that conditioned, will be subject to
the
new fee system.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So
other ones
already agreed to it
because of time expiring and having been granted their building permits then we
be
collecting anything from them?
MR. FOLEY: If they have building permits not unless they have a condition referring to their
occupancy permit. And we did in some cases the Planning Commission action referred
to occupancy rather than building permits. But a project that is, is done won't be subject
to, to this ordinance if they are not only, not only have their building permits but also
have their, have their occupancy permits. And there were a number of projects that
voluntarily paid an impact fee without a condition by the County that they make a
contribution. But also as Mr. Kaku mentioned, just because you pay an impact fee
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doesn't mean you might not also be required to do road improvements like intersections
and traffic signals and right tum lanes and land dedication and that kind of thing. The fee
is not totally exclusive, there can be other conditions as well depending on what the
impacts are.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Ms. Anderson, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure. Thank you. My apologies, Madam Chair, if I'm
bringing up something that was already discussed. I had a meeting I had to be at for a
few minutes. You know, Mr. Summers, you just said that doing an impact fee for South
and West Maui just didn't make sense. But you know we have an ordinance that was
adopted in 1988 by this body that was approved as to legality and form by Corporation
Counsel. So if it didn't make sense why was it adopted into law? That's a rhetorical
question, you don't need to answer it. You know, I don't think that this body is going to
adopt senseless legislation, Madam Chair. The Council, who was in these Chambers in
1988, recognized the immense development that was taking place in South Maui and
West Maui. And you know all you have to do is read the, the purpose and intent, I guess
back in 1988 they called it a preamble to the ordinance, and it very specifically says why
the body adopted this ordinance.
So I resent the fact that you folks think that this legislation is senseless and that we need
to stall things even further to do the whole island before we get any impact fees enacted
at all. Right now we have Mr. Kaku's Report, which was a final report prepared
March '03, and you know he went through all the exercises to make sure that we had
substantiation for initiating these impact fees. And since 2003, I don't know how many
projects have been approved in West Maui and South Maui where these impact fees
could have been initiated. And you know I don't know ifhe's going to corne up with any
changes, but it looks like a pretty comprehensive report to me.
So you
I
we're allowing
to drive this elected
body in making our decisions, Madam Chair, and stalling an action by this Council to
fulfill an ordinance that's been on this book since 1988. And if it had been followed
through after its enactment and this study had been done, appropriately done, we would
not be in the gridlock situation we're, we're in right now at least, clearly not as
gridlocked as we are. So I think that we need to move forward, I think we need to take
the report that we've got. .. (CHANGE TAPE) ... and go forward and then when you
folks finish the rest of this, whether it's Central Maui and wherever else that you feel is
appropriate -- and mind you they're only addressing regional roadways, major
roadways -- then we'll adopt that and we'll adopt an ordinance or amend this one that we
have to, to appropriate the impact fees for those areas that are not already authorized
under our County Code.
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And, and I would note, Madam Chair, and just for those who are listening, this is as of,
like I said what, March 2003 since we've had this study, which would have allowed this
body to move forward with these impact fees for West Maui. And I'm not. . .it's broken
down as far as residential, multi-family, retail and all that. I'm only going to tell you
what it is for, for single-family residential and for hotel developments. For single-family
residential it's $3,239 per dwelling unit; for hotel rooms $5,997 per hotel room;
South Maui -- now get a load of this -- $6,189 per dwelling unit and $14,670 per hotel
room. So what are we waiting for, Madam Chair? I know that you are still waiting for a
response from Corporation Counsel. We, we did get a response today, a verbal response?
CHAIR TAVARES: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The, the question that. .. this is the very last thing in, in the
binder so ifit's come in today, oh well. And, and you asked this question back in August
of 'OS, Madam Chair, to our Corporation Counsel, "Notwithstanding the concerns, may
Council proceed to enact traffic impact fees for South and West Maui based on Kaku
Report?" So there is a May 17th response, May 17, '06?
CHAIR TAVARES: Uh huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, why is January the last thing in here then, '06 if we
got something May '06? Was that handed out today?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR TAVARES: No. It might have been misfiled in your binder.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wen, Madam Chair, you want to answer why, what the,
what the answer is 'cause I don't have it?
back a

TAVARES:
there.

more pages? Maybe

IS

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I've been through the whole thing, I haven't seen it.
CHAIR TAVARES: Oh. Okay. Well, the short answer to the question was no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, what?
CHAIR TAVARES: No. We cannot input those impact fees in based on the old, the 2003 study.
When we get to that part we could ask Mr. Giroux to explain his expla ... , his letter more
in detail.
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MR. FOLEY: Madam Chair, could I respond to part of Ms. Anderson's comments?
CHAIR TAVARES: Yeah. Go ahead.
MR. FOLEY: I just wanted to mention that it was the Council's decision not the Department's
decision to make the impact fees island-wide. And that was based on a couple of factors:
one was that it was recognized that a great deal of development was occurring in
Central Maui; and at that particular time not very much development was occurring in
South Maui, and West Maui. Most of it was actually in Central Maui, and that was in
Maui Lani and Kehalani primarily. But there were some other large projects in west, in
Central Maui proposed as well, one of them being the one in, yeah, Wailuku Country
Estates and also Jesse Spencer's Project and the one in Waikapu.
Anyway, the other reason that it was decided by the Council, not the staff, to the make
the fee island-wide was because it was considered legally concerning that we would be,
we would be charging developers in some areas but not in other areas and that, therefore,
the projects in Central Maui wouldn't be required to pay us an impact fee whereas the
ones in South Maui and West Maui would be required to pay an impact fee.
The other thing was that we, we discovered that the, the preliminary fee structure didn't
include any land acquisition and that was one of the things that was pointed out before
the Council decided to ask that the fee be changed to island-wide. The other thing that
occurred and I don't remember whether this was between 1988 and 2003 or not. But
there are two lawsuits known very well to the planners, Nollan and Dolan, and Nollan
and Dolan basically state that -- these are Supreme Court decisions -- state that fees must
be reasonable with, they must be related to the project that the fees are being attached to.
And the other, the other case says that they may, must be a reasonable amount relevant to
the project. So they, they, in other words, you can't charge a project for an improvement
clear on, clear on the other side of the island, and you also can't charge an outrageous
amount that's not all proportional to the, to the project. Those are the Nollan and Dolan
Supreme Court cases,
sure
can
you more about
if you need.
it was the Council's decision, not the staffs' decision to ...we did recommend that you
apply the fee to the entire island rather than just two areas.
CHAIR TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Foley, we will look up the minutes of that meeting, because it
was not my understanding that we were going to go by an island-wide fee. And, we
wanted South and West to go forward because they already had enabling legislation and
that's my recollection, but I, you know, I don't trust my brains anymore or my memory.
So we will look it up to see, because I think we need to give more, well, clarify the
direction for Mr. Kaku so he can continue the study. And, you know, reference to the
NollanlDolan cases are well taken, so I don't see why we would go for an island-wide
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thing when you're going to expect somebody in West Maui to pay for improvements that
are occurring or based on improvements needed island-wide.
So it's kind of a mystery to me how that, how we're going to be able to defend that. But
we'll get into those discussions, but I first want to find out the facts of what happened at
that meeting and what direction was given. This study and update to the study has gone
on much too long, we were expecting to have a report by, I think, it was the end of
March. And it is now getting close to the end of July, and we still don't, still don't have
something finalized.
We also need to know and I think we got an answer to that, can we collect fees for the
State Highways improvements? I think the answer was, was that we could but then
what's the mechanism to do that? We don't have that in place, so we need to figure that
out.
I think every area is different, and I think we had this discussion during Committee.
That's why I will look up those minutes, Members, and meet with the Department to find
out, or, or to clarify what it is that we need from the Department. I had always wanted to
go forward with the West and South Maui fees and just gotten the ...what is the value in
today's dollar of what was recommended in 2003 and just do it, 'cause at least we'd have
two areas covered. Then go forward with the, with the rest of the island, but maybe in
our semantics we got a little caught up. But, I'm not sure about that.
We got the answer to the completion date of this particular report. Now I'm going to say
we'd probably have to wait a little while, because the object of the report is not what I
had in mind. And so I was wondering why the last slide had traffic impact fee example,
it just has one column. And, I, I always thought we were going to do it by community
plan regions, but that's, we'll look that up. And also, Mr. Kaku, in your assessment or in
your gathering of information, are you also looking at the cost associated with purchasing
rights-of-way for the roads? Is that included?
MR.

Yes, we are.
TAVARES: Oh, great. Okay. That's great. Mr. Carroll,
sorry I was following up on one of your things and ...

Ms. Anderson,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I appreciate that, Madam Chair. You know, I just
want to make it very clear that Mr. Foley felt it was necessary to refute what I just said.
And so I'm going to put it on the record that it was this Department who came forward to
this body in the last term and said, you can't go forward on this, and gave us all the same
excuses as why we couldn't go forward, the body needed to look at a broader impact fee
island-wide. The letters are right in here, and so the Council acted on their
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recommendation and, and here we are two years later, and we still haven't moved
forward.
Since 1988, we could have been collecting these fees. And, you know, I just find it
inexcusable that the Department has not made this a top priority and gotten something
finalized. And, and I'm sorry I haven't read this May 1ih .. .I guess it's a memo, it's not
even a legal opinion is it? Is it considered a legal opinion, Mr. Giroux? You can call me
Andersen instead of Anderson and we'll be even. I just can't get your name right, I try.
Every time I try to say it different, it's Giroux? Okay. So, would you consider this a
legal opinion or just a memo?
MR. GIROUX: I'm not too sharp on that distinction. We, we published it, this is coming from
our Department, it's our opinion. So this, this would be like any other opinion coming
out of our office, it's signed by Brian Moto and it's basically stating our opinion on the
legal issue. So it's, it carries whatever weight, whatever legal opinion comes out of our
office.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and, and you drafted this, correct?
MR. GIROUX: Yes. I worked on it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so did you pull the minutes and Committee reports
and what not when Chapter 14.62 was adopted, so that you were well aware of purpose
and intent behind this and what was discussed?
MR. GIROUX: I'm sure we worked extensively on this. One of the main documents that we
looked at we had already commented on May 8, 2003 on this report, and the basic finding
was that from researching with the Planning Department that, that no, since that memo
came out there was no addition to that report, which was written back in 2003. So we
basically were looking at that to find out if there was any other developments
the
meantime and the answer I believe at that
was no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: My question was, again, did you look at the,
background material, Committee reports, minutes, any kind of legal analysis that was
done when the Council adopted Chapter 14.6 in 1988, when you, when you draftedMR. GIROUX: Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --this May 27th or 17 opinion?
MR. GIROUX: Ms. Anderson, we, when we're analyzing legal questions, one of the basic
tenants is that first you, you read it on its plain reading. If at the plain reading it's vague
or, or you just can't make sense of it then you would go the next level analysis and trying
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to look at legislative intent and looking at, you know, different, different analysis that the
Supreme Court has given us to try to, to make sense of ordinances that may not be clear
on its face. But in this sense we were asked, you know, did the Kaku Report meet the
basic minimum requirements of 14.62 and 14.68? And our answer was no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you didn't, you just looked at the face of the ordinance
and you didn't, you're telling me you did not do any background research on the
ordinance itself?
MR. GIROUX: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. This has been going on for quite awhile.
First thing in our binder I believe is March 20,2001. But to some remarks, it, from the
Chair and from some other conversations that we've had about impact fees not being
used directly in the areas where the, you have homes built.
As in the
September 5,2003 letter in your binder the second paragraph, it's become abundantly
clear that we must apply such fees or at least on an island-wide basis. Much of the
impact on Hana's roadways, for example, may be generated by resort development in
other parts ofMaui.
Now we have figures to show that we can have a thousand trips a day in the summer, and
this is all generated from other parts of Maui on our County highway. And worse yet,
you have to double that figure, because they come right back out the same way. And I
would hope that, as we proceed, that at least some attention can be paid to this and
somehow we can address this. I don't think anybody here has probably driven Kipahulu
on the back side lately except me, but it, it is a real concern and it always has been. The
road is
fair condition right now, but it's obviously not being paid
by the impacts
are generating the
Thank
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. In regards to some of the projects
that were approved by the Planning Commission back then, I know some of the
developers came up with their voluntary contribution to traffic impact fess. And I'm
looking at the proposed traffic impact fees that was for West Maui as, as well as for
South Maui. The voluntary amount that was offered by developers in comparison to the
March 2003 numbers that Kaku came out with, do you know if the, the voluntary
amounts are close to these numbers, or have the Planning Commission ever used these
numbers as part of their conditions to the traffic impact fees?
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MR. FOLEY: Madam Chair, my recollection is that the Planning Commission didn't really use
these, this report, but I can recall two of the projects, one in South Maui and one in
West Maui, where the developer said that they used the, the number in this report, and
their voluntary contribution was exactly the same as the number in the report. But these
were two residential projects, they weren't hotel projects which have a significantly
higher number.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Members, I'd like to wrap this up as soon we can, so
we can get on to the next topic. And 'cause there's a lot of little background thing we
need to check as to the direction that the study was supposed to go, so keep that in mind.
Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to ask, and if it needs to be a written opinion,
that's fine, I wanted to find out, Madam Chair, if we could as a Council because by the
time we wait for all of these other things time will have passed, can we enact an interim
fee and legislatively alter the ordinance that basically would accommodate an interim fee
based on preliminary information that we've received? So that we could at least collect
some of the fees that are outstanding before people get their building permits or
certificate of occupancy.
CHAIR TAVARES: And I, I think that what's we have to more actively pursue, find out how
we can do it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and, Madam Chair, I think part of this also came
from when the original traffic ... our transportation planning model was actually funded
by the Council, it was very specific for South and West Maui only. And somehow it
wasn't this Administration but the prior Administration had without the Council's
permission expanded on the study to include all these other areas. And while it may not
have cost in terms of the actual dollar amount I, I recall
it was stated to us
it
cost the same amount so they just included
What it's done, Madam Chair, is by that
simple act it has really created a huge problem in my opinion. Because now the Council
specifically said, South and West, and that was not followed. So if there were problems
there should have been a return to the Council to address those at the point in time in
which the study was actually authorized. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Okay, Members, and we're going to leave this topic for now,
no objections, we'll, we'll defer until a further meeting. And we'll probably have to talk
with mister. .. or with the Planning Department to Mr. Kaku, so that before he goes too
much further in his, in his study that we're all know what exactly is supposed to be in
here and agree to, agree to it. So we'll look through our minutes and see what was
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discussed and what was the understanding and go from there. Okay. If no objections
we'll defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBER VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Kaku, for being here with us.
MR. KAKU: Thank you.

ITEM NO. 1:

UPDATES TO THE GENERAL PLAN (C.C.05-75)

CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Now, Members, we'll go on to PC-I and we have some people
patiently have waited to testify on this particular item. And we have Mr. Lance Collins,
who has signed up to testify to be followed by Dick Mayer. If anyone else wants to
testify on this item please come forward to sign up. Thank you. Same rule, three minutes
and one minute to conclude .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. COLLINS: Good afternoon, Madam Chair, and Members of the Planning Committee. My
name is Lance Collins, I'm a resident of Kahului and maintain a private practice as an
attorney in Wailuku. I'm speaking today with regards to Item PC-I, updates to the
General Plan process. Recently, and I believe these are in your folks' binders, the
Department of Corporation Counsel issued a memo opinion on June 30th regarding the
votes taken at the June ih, quote on quote, "orientation workshop".
you have read this memorandum opinion there's a number of issues that I would like to
exception to and bring your attention to.
first was that the meeting was properly
The opinion itself
noticed based on the minimum requirements set by the Sunshine
says that the Office of Information Practices said that the, the notice did not constitute a
per se violation of the Sunshine Law and only that it was quote "merely not best
practice". In OIP Opinion No. 01-06, it says, the Sunshine law requires a Board to
publish before each meeting, quote, "an agenda which lists all of the items to be
considered at the forthcoming meeting", end quote, cite, and then they cite to 92-7A. The
agenda clearly announced the meeting as Exhibit A to the memo opinion, it does say,
"Pursuant to Chapter 92, Part I, Hawaii Revised Statutes, As Amended, notice is hereby
given of an orientation meeting of the Maui Island General Plan Advisory Committee."
Simply because during the deliberations of one of these votes a member of the public had
an outburst that said that there was, that they were concerned that there wasn't a
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sufficiency of a notice does not void the meeting. In the memo opinion itself it directs
your attention in a footnote to 92-11, which says that, that actions that violate the
Sunshine Law are not void but are voidable, and the distinction of that law is that if
something is void regardless of what action is taken it was void from the beginning. But
something that is voidable means that it has, that some further action must occur in order
for something to be considered void. And according to the Statute that's cited in the
memo opinion an order to void this meeting if it were not properly noticed, which I don't
agree with, you'd have to take it to court within 90 days.
So why, why is this even an issue? Well, because a meeting occurred on June 7th , and
according to Bill 84, that means the time for the GP AC to do its work has begun. Now
the reason why this is important is not to try to humiliate the Planning Director or
humiliate the Planning Department staff or the Corporation Counselor anybody like that.
The reason why this needs to be brought up is because if those 180 days go by then the
GP AC starts its work based on some other 180 day whatever, come up with conclusions,
anybody in this County can go down to court, file for a writ of quo warranto or a dec
action and completely void everything because the 180 days has expired. And the
Council can't retroactively submit, pass a resolution to extend the time, they need to do it
now and this issue needs to be addressed now so that we can all be assured that I -MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. COLLINS: --we participate in the GPAC process that it's not going to be nullified by some
disgruntled developer or some disgruntled anybody after the fact, after all of the work has
been done.
And I think that this issue definitely needs to be addressed soon and it needs to be
addressed now, because the, the legal memo itself indicates that the meeting did occur
and that it is voidable if, ifit wasn't properly noticed. But that's something a court has to
decide within 90 days of
meeting, and none ofthat's occurring. And so that I, I am of
the opinion
clock has started and you folks definitely need to address this now and not
some distant
you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any questions

Mr. Collins? If not, thank --

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Madam Chair, -CHAIR TAVARES: --you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --I have a question.
CHAIR TAVARES: Oh. Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How would you propose us addressing this now if we
don't have a General Plan draft?
MR. COLLINS: Well, there's two ways. I think that either the Council can get some kind of
assurance from the Department about when they think a draft is going to be available.
And Bill 84 allows, by resolution, to have the Council extend the deadline from 180 days
and essentially extend it 180 days from the date that the Department believes that they'll
have the draft done and of course if that's reasonable. If they say 2008, then that's
obviously not reasonable.
Now the other way is to have the Planning Department sit down with the GP AC members
and discuss the issue and have the GP AC members as a body determine how they, how
they think is best appropriate to come back to the Council. And I think that the
Department would agree with that process, because they did that at the June 7th meeting,
they had the GP AC members decide amongst themselves what they wanted to do,
whether they wanted to ask the Council for more time or to amend Bill 84.
And so at least in my mind those are the two options. But I, something definitely needs
to be done before the 180 days is up, because then you're definitely going to start running
into very obscure legal problems that could thwart this whole process.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Collins.
MR. COLLINS: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Any other questions for Mr. Collins? Ifnot, thank you.
MR. COLLINS: Thank you.
CHAIR TAV ARES: Alright. Next to testify is Dick Mayer
Bruce.
MR.

to be followed by Lesley Ann

you, Madam Chair. My name is Dick Mayer and I just want to make
some comments about the Bill 84 that you may be revising. I, unlike Mr. Boteilho, feel
that the Bill does need to be revised, there are some problems with it. And I would like
to cite just three areas that I, that at least these three are ones that should be considered.
Number one, there should be the possibility of having a Chair and a Vice-Chair for the
GP AC. That was left out of the ordinance originally. Number two, and this one may
seem unusual because usually we always like to get as much discussion as possible on
things and I would certainly usually favor that, except that I do agree time is of essence.
And there is a problem and that is in Bill 84 it says that after it goes to the GP AC and
they make their recommendations it then goes to the Planning Commission. Planning
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Commission then has six months, by the time they wrap up and then get their report out
that could be another eight months, nine months, whatever. It then goes to the Planning
Committee of the Council, then eventually to the full Council. That could be a three-year
process by the, even, when you add in all the lapses between the various groups meeting.
I would urge you to delete the Planning Commission as one of the bodies that reviews the
General Plan. Not because they're bad people, in fact, I think this particular Planning
Commission is a very good one. But rather because of the time factor, A, and B, the
GP AC group is doing much of the work that a Planning Commission would do and
would be devoted its full attention for many months just to that issue. Whereas the
Planning Commission has about 15 items it's seemingly juggling in the air all at the same
time and would not be able to do the job, I think, well. I would urge you to delete the
Planning Commission in this, the process and it'll expedite it and I think it will have the
same results.
And lastly, as far as I know, there's nothing in the present Bill 84 that talks about any
kind of Countywide Policy Plan, which is now being discussed. If that's something that
you think should be in there to tie the various Island General Plans together then that
should be probably part of the Bill 84 amended, and I would urge you to consider that. It
is something that I urge you. Before Bill 84 was passed I said there was always going to
be a problem of integrating the three Island Plans together, and I didn't realize until
Mr. Boteilho said it today that, at least in his mind, there was really only one General
Plan that would go out to the three. I always thought that Bill 84 called for three separate
Island-wide Plans going to the various Planning Commissions on each of the islands.
Lastly and with regard to the traffic thing, I just want to add this because I think it's
important. What you just heard about the traffic impact fee, that is why the GP AC voted
on that June ih meeting for you not to approve any large projects except affordable
housing, et cetera. It was because we don't have the mechanisms in place to really
approve these things and to handle all the infrastructure issues. I just wanted to add that
to my testimony. It really relates to the
was on
agenda.
you.
questions for Mr. Mayer?

seemgnone.

you.

MR. MAYER: Thank you all.
CHAIR TAVARES: Our last person to testify is Lesley Ann Bruce.
MS. BRUCE: Good afternoon. My name is Lesley Ann Bruce. I represent myself. Thank you
for putting together a hardworking General Plan Citizens Advisory Committee. I am a
volunteer on that Committee and ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... frustrating experience. I had
assumed that the Planning Department would have had all the consultants' reports and
data available for our perusal from the beginning. And I had assumed that with the first
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meeting in January we would begin with reviewing the Planning Department General
Plan. I thought we'd be finished in June, instead we've had six months of orientation.
I had assumed that the volunteer group would be chaired by someone from this group
rather than a facilitator who is not a General Plan volunteered advisor and who fails to
recognize all who wish to participate and contribute to the discussion. I had assumed that
people who volunteer would be reimbursed for their transportation expenses. From Hana
the two-way trip can cost more than $50 in gasoline plus our hotel expenses and no
meetings are scheduled in Hana. So we feel discriminated against because of the
financial hardship that we endure. We want to move ahead expeditiously to craft the
General Plan to submit to this Council.
I support Dick Mayer's point, to avoid delaying the General Plan further, the General
Plan process could be speeded up by deleting the requirement that the General Plan move
to the Planning Commission for a review. It may take them more than six months to
absorb the information that we have learned since January because of their other things
on their plate. Move the General Plan from the GP AC directly to this Council. Thank
you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any questions for Ms. Bruce? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Ms. Bruce, for being here.
Appreciate it. You said that the facilitator fails to recognize everyone who'd like to
include their comments or has ...
MS. BRUCE: I think... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would you reiterate that?
MS. BRUCE: Yeah. The meeting has to be terminated at a time that people .. .is reasonable for
people because they're working
next day. So we
have
and I
first meeting
I raised
hand, I raised my
never
got addressed. But I think, you know, she looked at me
was calling, trying to give
everyone a tum, but I felt I had been missed that evening, so I talked to
personally.
So that was ... and then I have told her we all need to be able to, to be addressed by her.
It's 25 people, so it's, it's difficult. But, I think that people have to be, feel, feel that they
are being heard.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you don't feel that the facilitator was being fair in
recognizing everybody?
MS. BRUCE: Not at that, in that instance. And, and I don't know why that is happening. It just
doesn't seem right.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Anyone else have questions for Ms. Bruce? If not, thank you very much.
Is there anyone else in the audience who would like to offer comments at this point? If
not, Members, without objection I will close public testimony for this meeting this
afternoon.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Members, we are now in discussions on PC-l. You've heard
some members of the public testify and allude to possible amendments that mayor may
not be coming to the Committee for discussion. Those amendments are not before the
Committee. I think that I would provide a period for the Planning Department to update
us as to some of the areas they're looking at. I know that they have been working with
Corporation Counsel regarding our ability for, but before we start that I thought I'd
heard .. .I have some comments, if you don't mind.
I thought I'd heard everything, and today I am floored to hear that people are supporting
bypassing the Planning Commission in this process. I'm absolutely floored. Our
Planning Commission is set up, has been set up for a very long time to look at all the land
use issues. There are some things in our Committee, this Committee that I question, why
does it have to go to Planning Commission? Some decisions we can make here. But our
process has been about review and about public review many, many times in order for
things to be in the open or transparent as we call it. I will not support anything that has to
do with taking out the Planning Commission from this process. I think this is a very
dangerous precedent for us to even consider setting. It also, I think, lessens the
importance of the Planning Commissions to all three of our islands.
everyone IS
what I do know about this is that it is indicative of the frustration
feeling regarding this General Plan process and the GP AC formation and what has
happened since that formation. We
talking about it
a couple years now as
far as the GP AC. Bill 84 was under consideration by this Committee
two different
terms and finally adopted in a third term at the beginning of the year. We worked very
long and hard on Bill 84 and yes, until something really tries to be implemented we think
it'd be perfect, but now that it's trying to be implemented maybe there are some things
that need to be corrected. And I think that's where we have to go from here.
We're already in the process, so I think that whatever that we can do to make the process
work from this point forward if it takes a certain amount of our review and perhaps
revision or amendment to Bill 84 we at least should look at it. The clock whenever it
starts, it started, it hasn't started yet, it might start, it might never start. That, that to me is
- 46-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

July 172006

minor. Bill 84 includes a section or a safety valve, which says, "The Council may by
resolution extend any of the times for the review of the GP AC."
Just to review with everyone, it was brought out before, the General Plan Advisory
Committee process selection or finding people to volunteer for it and the selection
process, the interviewing, that started based on the Planning Department's schedule, and
we have been getting the Planning Department's schedules all along. And we have been
trying to be cooperative with the Planning Department in making sure that we get things,
you know, in a row so that it's not unduly manageable. The GPACs have been formed,
we can't erase that unless we're going to take a stand, Members, to, to null and void
everything we've done with the appointments to the General Plan Advisory Committees
for these three islands. And I figure we're going to start over some time, I don't know
when that time is we would start over.
So let's try to make the best we can out of this situation, salvage this process in such a
way that we can move forward, these volunteers are ready to move forward. I think I've
gotten at least a call or an e-mail from every single one of the members of the Maui
GP AC in particular and a couple from Molokai and a couple from Lanai. So they're
anxious to go, and I mean where do you find such enthusiastic community people? This
is amazing that they're committing their lives to something like this.
I know one member told me at. . .informally that he planned his daughter's wedding
around the GPAC schedule. Now if that's not commitment for our community, I don't
know what is. So let's, you know, as they say, try to make some lemonade out of some
of the lemons that might be hanging around and go forward from this point, get the
GPACs working and work out some of those technicalities as we're going along. So with
that, Mr. Foley, would you care to give us a brief overview of what areas we might
expect to see come forward as possible amendments to 280A, B, I'm sorry, 2.80B.
Thank you, Madam Chair. As you said, we have been meeting with
Corp. Counsel and yourself to discuss potential amendments,
be presenting
to the
3 meeting of this Board,
those to
Council
Committee
of the Council, hopefully, so that you can take action on July 31 st.
<UUHU.'O

One of the revisions that, that we've been talking about is the clarification that there is a
Countywide policy, there will be a Countywide plan, Policy Plan that will address
policies for all four islands and that, that document will be submitted simultaneously to
the GP ACs for Maui, Lanai, and Molokai. Second item is that we will clarify that there,
the GP AC should select a Chairman and a Vice-Chairman and rules for the operation of
their meeting. That's in the Bill 84 for the community plans, but it was inadvertently left
out for the, the GP ACs.

47 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

July 17 2006

We will not be recommending that the Planning Commission review be eliminated,
because it's very specifically required in the Charter. "The Charter says that the
appropriate Planning Commission shall", and this is on Page 2, "the appropriate Planning
Commission shall review the General Plan and revisions thereof prepared by the Planning
Director or at the request of the Council." Period. And that's not the end of the
paragraph, but the, the Charter clearly requires the respective Planning Commissions to
review all amendments or revisions to the General Plan.
We agree with the
h
Corp. Counsel that the June i meeting was an orientation meeting, it was very clearly
stated as that, published that way and it does not start the 180 day clock.
The .. .I wanted to address a couple ofthe other things that were mentioned in the hearing
or in the public testimony. As the Chair said, we were not surprised by the Council's
appointing of the General Plan Advisory Committee members, and in fact, I did
recommend on three different occasions lists of people to the Mayor for the appointments
that he was making. So we knew months in advance when the Council might appoint
members to the General Plan Advisory Committee. It was not done without our, our
knowledge.
The, the consultant contract that was referred to was for the Maui Island Plan and that
consultant is working on all three Island Plans for Molokai, Lanai, and, and, sorry, Maui,
Molokai, and Lanai. And the money has not been reviewed, removed from the budget for
the urban growth boundaries. The urban growth boundaries are now and have always
been the responsibility primarily of the Planning Department not the, not the consultants.
The reason that, that there's a difference of opinion between Mr. Boteilho and I with
respect to a number of these issues is reflected in the statement that he made that he was
not directly involved in General Plan meetings between me and the Long Range Division.
Wayne's responsibility was primarily related to the budget and to personnel, and he did a
great job
those two areas, but he was not involved in a lot of meetings regarding the
General Plan schedule, strategy, or work products.
incidentally
reading of,
Island
are
Islands, Maui, Lanai, and, and Molokai.
our representation to the
Council for the last two years that we've been preparing the, the General Plan, and fact
the, the Council just acted a month ago to allocate us money for the preparation of the
Molokai and Lanai Plans, which is further evidence that the Council didn't expect the
Plans to be submitted to the, the General Plan Advisory Committees simultaneously.
My understanding is that the simultaneous was related to having the, the Policy Plan
submitted to the three General Plan Advisory Committees. And that will be done, we're
ready to do that now but prevented from doing so by the, by the legal opinion that causes
us to consider amendments to Bill 84. Like I said, we'll hopefully have those available
so that you can act on them at the, the next meeting.
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We also support the, the idea that the General Plan Advisory Committee member
Vanderbilt made from Molokai that neither Lanai nor Molokai need both an Island Plan
and a community plan. And so we agree with those General Plan Advisory Committees
that, that those, those plans should be combined, and I think that will save us a lot of, a
lot of time and, and duplicate of effort, because both of those community plans are pretty
new and the General Plan Advisory Committee seemed to be pretty satisfied with the
community plans that they have now. So I think we can pretty easily convert them to
being an updated document. And unless you have any questions, Madam Chair, that's,
that's all I've got.
CHAIR TAVARES: Alright, Members. So they are aware that they need to give us those
documents in time for posting for the July 31 st meeting?
MR. FOLEY: Yes.
CHAIR TAVARES: So any questions from the Members?
Mr. Pontanilla.

I'll go down this, this way.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Because we selected the GP AC members
meaning that each of us had a number to pick. For Molokai and Lanai to combine the
General Plan and the community plan do we still need to select different members for the
community plan or can we just go ahead and use the General Plan people that were
selected by this body?
CHAIR TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Pontanilla, if I may intelj ect I think we have to discuss that
when -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
amen~lment

COUNCILMEMBER

comes
Okay.

CHAIR TAVARES: Because we'll need to look at that, because we do have a separate GPAC
set up for all the community plan regions so that would impacting both Lanai and
Molokai if they want to do something different.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
CHAIR TAVARES: Anything else?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: One more question.
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CHAIR TAVARES: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBERPONTANILLA: One of the testifiers said that they were from Hana. Do
we reimburse those members that come all the way from Hana to attend meetings over
here, especially at night, for their lodging as well as transportation?
CHAIR TAVARES: I don't believe that we addressed that in the Bill, but I think that it's
something that could be addressed when they're doing their Rules of Order for the
organization of the GPAC. But I don't know if Mr. Foley has any comments regarding
this particular issue.
MR. FOLEY: Madam Chair, the only comment I would have is that we provide support for
11 or 12 committees, commissions, boards, and the only one that receives any mile ... ,
they receive mileage reimbursement is the, I think, the Maui Planning Commission,
because they're expected to drive around the island looking at the projects and they also
come from all, all directions. But there was no budget allocated by the Council for
reimbursement of the GPAC members. If you wish to do so that's fine, but we don't
have money allocated for reimbursement except for Maui Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Madam Chair, I would suggest that we take a look at
this -CHAIR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
Committee. Thank you.

--to properly provide some expense dollars for the

CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Molina.
so for

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
IS tenlatllvel
next GP AC
MR.

record

No.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No? So ...
MR. FOLEY: There are no GPAC meetings scheduled at this time, because we're, we need
Bill 84 revised to clarify which documents go to which GP ACs at what time because
that's in dispute.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Committee meeting?

Okay.

So the July 31 st, we're talking about the Planning
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CHAIR TAVARES: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. FOLEY: Oh. I'm sorry. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: ... (inaudible) ... trying to do.
MR. FOLEY: We're talking about the, this, this Committee meeting on July 31 st . We'll have
the Bill 84 amendments available for your review prior to that meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And as far as orientation meetings that's all done? And
for whenever the next GP AC meetings are?
MR. FOLEY: They're, they're done for Maui, but we had intended to do some additional
orientation for Molokai and Lanai. We're reluctant to do that now, because we, you
know, may have an attorney saying that starts the, the 180 day clock. So right now,
we're not scheduling any GP AC meetings we're just, everybody is working full-time on
the preparation of the Plan, the Maui Island Plan and the Countywide Plan, which we're
ready to distribute, but we can't do that because there's a dispute about, you know, who it
goes to when.
MR. SUMMERS: I mean technically if I, Madam Chair, we couldn't meet to discuss the
Countywide Policy Plan until the Molokai, Lanai, and Maui Island Plans are completed,
and as you know, we were just budgeted in this budget to begin Molokai and Lanai.
MR. FOLEY: A month ago.
MR. SUMMERS: So that's a significant issue.
Madam
one
or Issue.
Mr. Foley, you've been, your name has been mentioned here
testimony today with
some concerns from your former Deputy Planning Director with regards to the General
Plan. Can you respond .. .I think it's only fair that we give you a chance to respond to
some of the, I don't know for lack of a better word, accusations of with the issue of you
making the General Plan a priority with the Department. Because to be quite frank I'm a
little concerned about what's going on here.
MR. FOLEY: Well, let me, let me quote one of my staff members who left because she was so
upset about that statement. She worked 34 hours of overtime in the last couple of weeks
on the General Plan, and she said, if this isn't priority what is it? We have people
working evenings and weekends for months, and then the same thing with our
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consultants. And, this is the top priority for the Long Range Division. They, they are
doing almost nothing else except working on the General Plan, and we have a number of
consultants working on the General Plan. So it's very offensive to say, to hear anybody
say, even somebody from the public to say that the Long Range Planning Division
doesn't consider the General Plan to be a priority. It is their priority, it's been their
priority for the last year. And it's also the, you know, the extraordinary work effort not
only by our, our staff but also by a team of consultants. And so it is definitely a very high
priority.
And as I mentioned before, a lot of the inaccuracies in Mr. Boteilho's statement are
merely related to the fact that he wasn't present at a lot of the meetings when the Long
Range Planning Division and I put together the schedules and the strategies and the work
products with our consultants. It wasn't part of his job assignment.
His job assignment was primarily to work on, to prepare and administer the Department's
budget with 60 employees and also to, to work with the Personnel Department in filling
our, our vacancies. We currently have eight vacancies in the Department, some of them
have been vacant for more than a year and that's not by any means Mr. Boteilho's fault.
It's a very, very difficult job market right now and we have extremely high housing
prices, so we're having recruiting problems.
But anyway the, the, I already pointed out a couple of areas where we disagreed with
respect to what Bill 84 says, and I think you'll recall that I was here for the, the last year
of its deliberation and my, one of the main things that I participated in during that period
of time was arguing for the urban growth boundaries. And Mr. Kane and I had lengthy,
animated conversations about urban growth boundaries and discussed their success or
lack of success in, in Portland and other communities. And I have always been a strong
advocate for urban growth boundaries, I've used them since 1970, in that other state to, to
our east, and I'm looking forward to submitting the maps from the Planning Department
to the Maui GP AC that have urban growth boundaries on them.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Now,
Foley,
transpires
on I hope we
can move on and
the pedal to the metal, if you will, on this process; otherwise, all
work that this Committee did on Bill 84 and the General Plan might be perceived as
going for naught.
And if I could add one more comment with regards to the facilitation of the GP AC meetings.
This is the, we had a testifier here that expressed concerns about the facilitation, that's the
second time something to do with the facilitating ofthe meeting came up. So I would ask
that whoever from the Department is present at the meeting that if you folks have to
intervene and get involved a little bit more with the facilitation of the meeting, I think
that would help with the process and iron out any potential misunderstandings that could
occur.
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MR. FOLEY: I, I would, I would agree that Ms. Bruce stated that she, you know, hadn't been
recognized on a timely manner, but you have to understand that there are 25 members of
that Committee and that sometimes the half of them have their hands in the air. So there
are several members in the audience that can attest to that, Mr. Shibuya in the, directly
behind you is, is laughing and Ms. Moikeha is here as welL And there are a lot of people
interested in being heard, and we're recommending that a Chair and a Vice-Chair be
appointed for the General Plan Advisory Committees and you know frankly I wish them
luck, because one person running a meeting with 25 participants, especially the active
participants that you've given us, is a very daunting task, it's very difficult.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But that's why we pay them the big bucks to do that. So that's
my, my feeling on that, we pay them, it's their job to facilitate that meeting in an
appropriate manner.
MR. FOLEY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So I'll leave it at that.
MR. FOLEY: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Foley, we just heard a little bit
ago that you just, about a month ago got your monies to do the Molokai, Lanai Plan. We
heard that there is, I guess, interpretation issues regarding interpretation of 84. I read in
the paper that you indicate that the plan, the General Plan process is right on target. Who,
I just cannot see how it's on target. This is already July, the Committee will not meet till
probably August, and we've already lapsed a couple
months already. I believe some
of the members of GP AC is kind of frustrated as well, perhaps not
more active
participants, you know, that are here today and on the island. But it's just that they don't
know what the hell is going on with all of these problems and controversies between the
Director, the Deputy, between understanding of 84 and the like. So, Mr. Foley, are we on
target?
MR. FOLEY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And on target that you'll be able to accommodate what was originally
scheduled so that the 180 day process will be the target that you have
identified... (inaudible) ...
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MR. FOLEY: Our, our goal in the, in the revisions to Bi1184 are just to clarify that each of the
General Plan Advisory Committees should have 180 days to review their Plan. Now
nowhere does it say in Bill 84 that the Molokai GP AC is going to review the Maui Plan
or the Maui Plan, Maui GP AC is going to review the Lanai Plan or the Lanai GP AC is
going to review anybody else's Plan. I mean that's just totally false. That, that has never
been in, in Bill 84 and Mr. Boteilho is just, you know, completely wrong when he stated
that.
But, we, we mainly want to make clarifications to Bill 84 so that it's absolutely clear, you
know, which products are going to be reviewed by which Committees. And once the
General Plan Advisory Committee has completed their 180 day review that Plan comes to
me, and then the Plan goes to the Planning Commission and then the Plan goes to the
Council. The General Plan Advisory Committee's participation is for six months out of a
three-year period. So I understand that they're frustrated and I wish we were meeting
with them, but due to a legal issue that needs to be resolved we can't meet with them
until that legal issue is resolved. And the easiest way to do that seems to be to revise
Bill 84 to make these clarifications.
And while we're making a few clarifications we want ask you to make a couple of
substantive revisions, one of them being that Molokai and Lanai each would have one
Plan, not both an Island Plan and a community plan. And that so far has been supported
by the GPACs on Molokai and Lanai. But, if you decide not to do that then, you know,
we won't do that. We'll, we'll prepare their Island Plans and then three or four or five
years ago some Planning Department will prepare their community plans. I think they'll
be extremely similar, but if you want to do it that way that's totally up to the Council.
We just want to explain the, we'll explain the advantages of having one Plan for Molokai
and one Plan for Lanai instead of two for each island.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Foley. And, and, and I guess, you know, because the,
the GP AC Maui has access to yourself and to the Planning offices directly as well as
Range Plan, Molokai, Lanai we don't have direct contact. So what is your plans
being able to expedite processes, so GP AC Molokai, GP AC Lanai will have the
access
asking questions and getting clarifications, et cetera on a timely fashion?
MR. FOLEY: John and I will both comment on that, but I do want to mention that we have had
two meetings with the Molokai General Plan Advisory Committee and two with Lanai.
And we obviously will be having a lot more meetings with them.
We've also successfully hired a Molokai planner, and she will start within the next
30 days. And hopefully she'll provide a very important link between the people on
Molokai and, and the, the Department. She's going to be in, on Maui a lot of the time for
the first couple of months getting acclimated to the General Plan and the Molokai
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community plan and all of our other regulations, but having that new staff member is
going to help, help us.
And we also have brought Molokai and Lanai GP AC members over to Maui recently to
attend meetings with us and with, with our consultants, where, for instance, we have
some consultants working on the issue of what to do with, and quote, "unimportant ag
land", may be called rural, maybe not. And we had representatives from Molokai that,
that we brought over, we paid their expenses and brought them over to that workshop
twice. . .. (CHANGE TAPE) ...
CHAIR TAVARES: ., .Members, we'd like to wrap up pretty quickly so try to keep your
questions short and to the point if you can.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Yeah.
And, Madam Chair, under Chapter 2.76,
Reimbursement of Expenses, does authorize payment for boards and, members of boards
and commissions and duly appointed committees of the County when such individuals
incur necessary expenses in performance of their public duties. So that is already
authorized in the County Code. So I guess it's just a question of who pays for it and how
they turn in the bills.
With respect to one issue and that is .. .I guess it goes back to time management and
prioritization because this is such an important issue, and Mike and John have, you know,
really said that they have a lot on their plate besides doing all the other things. I would
just ask you outright, Mr. Foley, do you need the Council to send forward some type of a
directive in the form of legislation just temporarily putting some of the other things on
hold that with regard to huge subdivisions and all these other things? Because I sense,
based on the comments made by some of the members of the GP AC, the members of the
community, is there any way that you would like to see this so that at least some of these
issues can be held in abeyance so that the full focus can go actually onto the General
Plan?
of a
We, we
Madam
boy
Anne,
one
done everything we can to make sure that the general,
the Long Range Planning staff
is working almost full-time on the General Plan. The, the projects' review, whether
they're large projects or small projects, are done by the current Planning Division not by
the Long Range Planning Division. So, Long Range really isn't all that impacted by, by
the large projects except to occasionally go to evening meetings just to keep track, like
we did with the Kaanapali meeting last week, just to keep track of, of what the status of
those projects are. So we've already done everything we can to keep people pretty much
90 percent on the General Plan.
We did recently ask, in fact I sent the memo today, asked the Cultural Resources
Commission to take a vacation for a couple of months if they could possibly do that,
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because they're having an impact on, on one of our planners who's, who's supposed to be
managing the General Plan effort. And he's doing, you know, two or three jobs and, and
so we just thought if, if it were possible, we'd, that would be one thing that would really
help us. So we've asked the Cultural Resources Commission not to meet for a couple of
months if they can, if they can do that.
And there are other projects that we have, we just have, you know, kind of put on hold,
long range projects and, and we've tried to shift some of the responsibilities for that work
to Public Works, I see Milton is not here, to Public Works and, and even the
Redevelopment Agency. We're trying to train their Director and get them up to speed so
that our, our Long Range planners don't have to work on the Redevelopment Agency
projects.
So we're, we're doing everything we can, but there really isn't anything the Council can
do. Even if you allocated money for several additional planners we can't find them. You
know we're, we're having a difficult time recruiting even for the positions we have open.
And we have two or three in Long Range that we're trying very hard to fill. We did fill
the Molokaijob and that, that's great.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. My thought was more along, Madam Chair, some
type of a prioritization or suspension of certain kinds of, I guess, reviews by the Planning
Commission until we get a better handle on the General Plan. So I guess we can keep
that open as an option and reduce your work lord.
MR. FOLEY: That, Madam Chair, if I could just to respond to that. When the General Plan
goes to the Planning Commission that would be a great time to reopen this discussion.
Because when the Planning Commission gets the General Plan and has six months to
review it and comment on it, they're going to be very hard-pressed to do that given that
they are already meeting three, three days a week on projects. So that, that's worthy of
some additional consideration. Maybe, maybe there's some prioritization that, that
should be done at the Planning Commission level so that they can get their General
reviewed six months. Because they're, they're extremely busy, they've been meeting
at least three days a week, I mean, sorry, three days a month and they've had a lot of
night meetings. And they're going to be, you know, imagine, on top of that having the
General Plan to review.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Foley, you made a statement that
there are in the General Plan there are definitely three Island Plans that are required?
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MR. FOLEY: That's, that's been our, our presentation for the last two years and the Council has
endorsed that repeatedly. In the budget -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you ...
MR. FOLEY: --you were authorized money specifically for the Maui Island Plan. And a month
ago you specifically authorized money for the Molokai Island Plan and the Lanai Island
Plan. So, it's been recognized by the Council repeatedly for the last two years that there
are three Island Plans.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So could you quote where you see that in Chapter 2.SB
[sic]?
MR. FOLEY: They, the section that is usually quoted is on the top of Page 43, if you have the
same document that I ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Lanai, Maui, and Molokai?

I'm seeing it.

The island-wide land use strategies for

MR. FOLEY: Yeah. And then it repeats the island-wide strategies for Lanai, Maui, and
Molokai and talks about the vision statement for each island and, and does not
incidentally require urban growth boundaries for Molokai and Lanai. And that was
purposely done and discussed. And I, there are other references also, but it, it should be
more clear that, that for the past two years we have, we and the Council have repeatedly
referred to those three Island Plans.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, once these three Plans are done will they be, you
know, aside from the amendment that you are going to be proposing let's just take what's
currently in the,
ordinance. Once those three Island Plans are done they would be
collated together into one General Plan? Is that correct?
Yes,
Countywide Policy Plan. Those
documents would be adopted
Council as the Maui General Plan. And
we'd do the
community plans.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So when you say four documents, you're saying a
Countywide Policy Statement, an Island Plan for Maui, an Island Plan for Lanai, and an
Island Plan for Molokai they would all be together in one document together as a General
Plan?
MR. FOLEY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
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MR. FOLEY: They probably could be purchased individually as well. But though it, it says that
those four would constitute the -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The General Plan.
MR. FOLEY: --the General Plan. And, and, you know, we can strengthen that language if
necessary.
MR. SUMMERS: If I may add to that. Much like the community plans, technically the
community plans are also part of the General Plan, but each community plan is adopted
separately via ordinance. So some communities, as we noted on our orientation session
to this body, adopt General Plans as one document, other communities adopt them as a
set of documents. But whether it's one document that's eight inches thick or four
documents that are two inches thick a piece ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are you anticipating an eight inch thick document?
MR. SUMMERS: It could be.
MR. FOLEY: We hope not.
MR. SUMMERS: There's a lot of substance to the new Bill 84. So it wouldn't surprise me at all
if the Maui Island Plan itself was three inches thick.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because of the urban growth boundaries?
MR. SUMMERS: Well, because of the capital improvement elements, the action plans, the
directed growth strategies, there's a lot of meat there that will comprise that document.
MR. FOLEY: We do not
HJIJ-'-JA~

MR. FOLEY:

to have the General

include

the technical study --

ANDERSON:

socioeconomic study, the land use forecast.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. FOLEY: Those kinds of things will be referred to in the General Plan, but they won't
actually be in the bound document.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. But their conclusion should b -MR. FOLEY: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --what you base -CHAIR TAVARES: Uh huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --your decisions on -MR. FOLEY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --as far as the General Plan. So my question then is,
'cause you're talking about combining the General Plan and the community plan for
Molokai into one document and the General Plan and community plan for Molokai into
one document.
MR. FOLEY: The, the Island Plan and the community plan into one document for each of those
islands. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The Island Plan.
MR. FOLEY: Because the Countywide Policy Plan is an umbrella document for all four islands
including Kahoolawe.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. FOLEY: And it, it is frankly very similar to the existing General Plan. Its policies and
objectives that are, are very general and, and apply to all four islands. But then when you
get to the Island Plans they get significantly more consist. .. , significantly more specific
and, and much more detailed. And, and in a lot of, in, in Molokai and Lanai they
invariably resemble the community plans very directly.
So we just
and
GP ACs agreed
we should at least strongly consider
combining those documents. We
it you don't want to,
we
it
would be more
appropriate to, to combine
And, and but to do that you have
definitely have to change Bill 84, and you have to explain to those GP AC members that,
gee, you are also are lucky enough to be on the Community Plan Advisory Committee
too.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you think that the General Plan or let's just say the
Island Plan for Molokai and Lanai is going to be detailed enough to suffice for a
community plan?
MR. FOLEY: Yes. They can be. The, they, they can be very similar to the ones that were
recently adopted for Molokai and Lanai.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But then the ...
MR. FOLEY: They, they need to have their, you know, they need to be perhaps structured
slightly different and they'll need some additional work, but and they may be, tum out to
be more detailed in, in some respects than the Maui Island Plan, which has to cover a
significantly larger geographic area.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I'm, I'm going to tell you right now that I have a lot
of concern about combining these two documents. You know, there's land use
designations that are involved and that's a long lengthy process that each community plan
goes through. Community plans only supposed to be good for 10 years, not 20 years.
The General Plan is a 20-year document.
So, you know, I hope you can give us some strong substantiation for making these
amendments, because I think that there's a real value in having a distinct community plan
from the General Plan. So, and I would hate to see the General Plan be so specific that it
just becomes a community plan because it is so specific. And I know there's very
specific directives in this Bill 84 on how we're extending what is contained in the
General Plan, but it still is a General Plan. And it's not meant to address, you know, land
use designations, community plan map designations. So I don't know how you're going
to address that. Maybe, I don't know, maybe the ...well, I'm going to leave it at that,
Madam Chair, because I don't know enough about until we get some product-CHAIR TAVARES: Db huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --to see. Even if you guys, you know, if you want us to
make amendments it would be very helpful if you could come at the next meeting with
some examples of what an Island Plan is going to look like. You know what I'm saying?
MR. SUMMERS: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean,
don't have to
yourself as being a draft
or end product, but just an example. And I think that's part of the problem here,
Madam Chair, is that we're all reading these, this language, you know, and you know in
theory when you're, when you're drafting legislation and you're trying to make, you
know, logical sense out of it, you know, A, B, C, and D sounds good. But when you get
down to the practical matter of actually implementing it then you find the problems and
you find the, you know, the maybe inconsistencies or lack of clarity that has caused all
the problems that we're in right now.
So if, if you could give us some example even if. .. I mean I don't know how far you've
gotten, so I can't really say, but an example of what an Island Plan would look like. And
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even if you don't have what the, the action plan or the vision plan for each Island Plan
might be, you know, just give us some idea of what that would consist of. Because, you
know, I'm terrified when you say a three inch thick document for the General Plan. I
don't know how anybody could, you know, really utilize it, you know. I mean it's got to
be, if it' s that thick a document it's got to be highly indexed and, and you know ...
MR. FOLEY: That, that's why I mentioned that people probably would purchase individual
sections. You know, most people will buy either the Lanai, the Lanai portion or the
Molokai portion or the Maui portion. They're not likely to want all four sections.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But that's what the general, the community plans are for,
so that's why we have individual community plans. Mr. Summers, did you have a
comment?
MR. SUMMERS: I, I do. I think in the case of Maui County it just makes so much sense to
package it as four documents. Because as Mr. Foley stated, a lot of people will be
concerned about the Molokai Island Plan, they'll want to purchase that, they don't
necessarily want the entire document. I could foresee some real problems having the
Maui GPAC reviewing the Molokai GPAC or the Molokai and Lanai GPACs' work.
There, there's just a number of reasons both efficiency-wise and in terms of insuring that
we have an effective product delivered that just make a whole lot of sense clarifying that
these are four documents that comprises this General Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so when you come next week or whenever it is,
Madam Chair, with these amendments, I would like to see exactly and it doesn't need to
be anything in detail but, you know, I'll bring my community plans and if you could
bring the Lanai and Molokai Community Plans and, you know, give us .. .I mean I don't
want to pass anymore legislation unless we know exactly what the end result's going to
be. Give us some example of how the community plan can morph into the General Plan.
I mean, I guess then you're asking us to have one, have one or the other be one of
the same.
other words, there will no longer really
a community plan,
just be a
or a General
for Molokai
includes
details
that what you're saying?
MR. FOLEY: More, more likely it'll be the community plan for Molokai and the community
plan for Lanai and there won't be an Island Plan for Molokai and Lanai. But we could do
it the opposite way, we could also, we could say here's the Island Plan for Lanai and the
Island Plan for Molokai and that's it, there are no community plans for those two, those
two islands. You can do it either way, we can call it an Island Plan or we can call it a
community plan, but the, the document is going to be the same.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, I don't even like the terminology Island
Plan because there's no place in here talking about an Island Plan. We have a General
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Plan and a community plan and it's all throughout the Code. It's referenced throughout
the Code. And so I think we gotta be real careful about changing terminology and
morphing this into something that maybe fits the, the ...
MR. FOLEY: The whole justification for the Maui Island Plan was very strong, and that was to
have a combining document that addressed issues that are not bound by, by a particular
community plan area. There are a lot of roads, there are a lot of facilities that relate to
multiple community plans, and we wanted an Island Plan for Maui that eliminated a lot of
the conflicts between the community plans. There, there were some serious conflicts
between adjacent community plans that should be eliminated by having a Maui Island
Plan. But the same justification completely is eliminated on Molokai and Lanai, it's
totally unnecessary, and we, you know, it just, it's already an Island Plan for Molokai and
Lanai. So it -COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Well.-MR. FOLEY: --just isn't ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --as I said, Mr. Foley, I really don't appreciate the use of
Island Plan, because it's not mentioned anywhere in this ordinance, an Island Plan.
MR. FOLEY: Well, we talked about it for years.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that-MR. FOLEY: I mean, it-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that's your terminology.
--and it's
'--'~JWHJ"~J"~~.~i~

ANDERSON:
me,
me
terminology to
describe the island-wide
use strategies for Lanai, Molokai, and Maui. And, you
know, what's in here talks about various strategies and plans that are developed specific
to each island. It doesn't talk about an Island Plan.

Now, if your interpretation of that is an Island Plan that's your intemal1anguage, that's
not what's in the ordinance. And so I wish we would stick to what the ordinance says, a
General Plan and a community plan. And if you want to morph the community plan into
a General Plan for the two smaller outer islands or vice versa then that's something for us
to discuss. But, you know, I just appreciate it if we keep the semantics to what we have
in our adopted ordinance, because we don't have anything in here that talks about Island
Plans. So, you know, maybe you're talking about a map for each island.
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MR. SUMMERS: Yeah. When we get the ordinance on the 31 st, I think we can have a good
conversation about that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And bring examples.
MR. SUMMERS: And the Kauai Plan, which is a very good example. I believe it's on the
internet, but we'll bring hard copies to this meeting. But if you want to get it to early, go
ahead and look at County of Kauai website.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and what have they done?
MR. SUMMERS: They've done a nice Island Plan that I think provides a pretty good example
of what we're talking about.
An Island Plan that encompasses General Plan
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
requirements as well as community plan?
MR. SUMMERS: Right. It's one, one document.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: One plan for the whole thing?
MR. SUMMERS: For, for the Island of Kauai.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So if you guys are looking at this kind of overhaul,
and I see it as a huge overhaul of this ordinance, you need to also look at how that would,
how that would, what the repercussion would be throughout the County Code. You have
community plan amendments, you have consistencies with the General Plan, all that kind
of requirement. You know, if you're changing all this, you need to look at that, too.
TAVARES: Okay.

you. We're going to --

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR TAVARES: --move on here, 'cause it's really getting late and, and we need to go.
Mr. Carroll, do you have any comments at this point? No? Okay. Members, we're
going to be scheduling the amendments or the proposed amendments for the
July 31 st meeting. I would ask that you please look at your schedules and see if you can
keep the evening of July 31 st open if at all possible. We'll send a note around, because
we have other things on our, on our scheduled agenda for that day that we would like to
at least begin discussion on. So July 31 stwould be our next meeting on this particular
item, so we will defer PC-1 with no objection.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Anyannouncements? If not, this meeting is adjourned .
. . . (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

4:48 p.m.

APPROVED:

CHARMAINE TAVARES, Chair
Planning Committee
Transcribed by: Daniel Schoenbeck

pc:min:060719
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I, Daniel Schoenbeck, hereby certify that the foregoing represents to the best of my ability, a
true and correct transcript of the proceedings. I further certify that I am not in any way concerned with the
cause.
DATED this 4th day of August 2006, in Pukalani, Hawaii.

Daniel Schoenbeck
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